




















Matters discussed in this repcrt may ccnstitute

fcrward looking statements The Private Securities

Litiqaticn Retcrm Act ct 1995 provides safe harbcr

prctecticns fcr forward looking statements in order to

encourage companies to provide prospective intorma

ton about their business Porward looking statements

include statements concerning plans objectives

goals strategies future everts or performance and

underlying assumptions and other statements which

are other than statements of historical facts

Aegean Marine Petroleum Network Inc or the Com

pany desires to take advantage of the safe harbor

provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform

Act of 1995 and is including this cautionary statement

in connection with this safe harbor legislation This

report and any other written or oral statements made

by us or on our behalf may include forward looking

statements which reflect our current views with

respect to future events and financtal performance

When used in this report the words anticipate

believe expect intend estimate forecast

project plan potential may should and simi

ar expressions identify forward looking statements

The forward looking statements in this report are

based upon various assumptions many of which are

based in turn upon further assumptions including

without limitation managements examination of his

torical operating trends data contained in our records

and other data available from third parties Important

assumptions relating to the forward looking state

ments include among other things assumptions

regarding demand for our products the cost and

availability of refined marine fuel from suppliers pric

ing levels the timing and cost of capital expenditures

competitive conditions and general economic condi

tions These assumptions could prove inaccurate

Although we believe that these assumptions were rea

sonable when made because these assumptions are

inherently subject to significant uncertainties and con

tingencies which are difficult or impossible to predict

and are beyond our control we cannot assure you that

we will achieve or accomplish these expectations

beliefs or projections

In addition to these assumptions and matters dis

cussed elsewhere herein important factors that in our

view could cause actual results to differ materially

from those discussed in the forward looking state

ments include our future operating or financial results

our future payment of dividends and the availability of

cash for payment of dividends our ability to retain and

attract senior management and other key employees

our ability to manage growth our ability to maintain

our business in light of our proposed business and

location expansion our ability to obtain double hull

bunkering tankers given the scarcity of such vessels

in general the outcome of legal tax or regulatory pro

ceedings to whch we may bocome party adverse

conditions in the shipping or the marine fuel supply

industries our ability to retain our key suppliers and

key customers our contracts and licenses with gov

ernmental entities remaining in full force and effect

material disruptions in the availability or supply of

crude oil or refined petroleum products changes in

the market price of petroleum including the volatility of

spot pricing increased levels of competition compli

ance or lack of compliance with various environmental

and other applicable laws and regulations our ability

to collect accounts receivable changes in toe politi

cal economic or regulatory conditions in the markets

in which we operate and the world in general our

future pending or recent acquisitions business strat

egy areas of possible expansion and expected

capital spending or operating expenses our failure

to hedge certain financial risks associated with our

business uninsured losses our ability to maintain our

current tax treatment our failure to comply with restric

tions in our credit agreements increases in interest

rates and other important factors described from

time to time in our U.S Securities and Exchange

Commission filings

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Please note Throughout this report all references to we our us and the Company refer to Aegean Marine

Petroleum Network Inc and its subsidiaries We use the term deadweight ton or dwt in describing the size of

vessels Dwt expressed in metric tons each ot which is equivalent to 1000 kilograms refers to the maximum

weight of cargo and supplies that vessel can carry Unless otherwise indicated all references to dollars and

in this report are to and amounts are presented in dollars

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Sales ot marine petroleum products

Voyage revenues

ther revenues

in thousands ot dollars except for share

and per share data which are presented in dollars

790657 1345849 2768067 2449445 4954599

11639 5758 1379 9044 7261

1516 1266 8526 12471 9775

TOTAL REVENUES 803812 1352873 2777972 2470960 4971635

Cost of marine petroleum products

sold exclusive of items shown

separately below

Salaries wages and related costs

Depreciation

Amortization of drydocking costs

Amortization of finite lived intangibles

Management fees

Gain/loss on sale of vessel

Other operating expenses

728637 1251712 2594443 2266960 4723723

12871 24363 41666 47708 67378

4240 6373 12604 16792 21092

1684 3172 3640 4574 5805
52 313 312 1001

223 54

2693 4094 1540

25697 39042 73157 79492 109270

OPERATING INCOME

Write-off of deferred offering costs1

Interest and finance costs

Interest income

Foreign exchange gains losses net

Income taxes

30460 30798 52149 59216 41826

1588
5207 3473 12377 10255 17351

976 1990 501 46 31

414 1569 1521 329 3612
1879 153 2161

NET INCOME 24225 27738 39915 48525 18733

0.84

0.84

0.65

0.65

0.94

0.94

113

1.13

For the Year Ended December 31

Basic earnings per share121 0.40

Uiluted earnings per share121 0.40

Weighted average number ot

shares basic121 28954521 42417111 42497450 42579187 46295973

Weighted average number of

shares diluted121 28954622 42505704 42625801 42644448 46445499
Dividends declared per share121 0.14 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

in thousands of dollars unless otherwise stated

BALANCE SHEET DATA

Cash and cash equivalents 82425 1967 46927 54841 86499

Total assets 315877 566957 641907 967345 1339835
Total debt 33496 208031 253621 401037 624698
Total liabilities 100878 323232 356904 632288 869472
Total stockholders equity 214999 243725 285003 335057 470363

OTHER FINANCIAL DATA

Gross spread on marine petroleum

products131 62020 89671 160963 176498 218533
Gross spread on lubricants131 455 536 1298 2755 2221

Gross spread on marine fuel11 61565 89135 159665 173743 216312
Gross spread per metric ton ot marine

fuel sold U.S dollars1 26.0 25.9 30.7 28.1 21.0

EBITDA1 34382 38826 70227 80565 66112
Net cash provided by used in

operating activities 17064 128128 136737 61353 64626
Net cash used in investing activities 55190 124692 135667 75230 169003
Net cash provided by financing activities 112949 172362 43890 144497 265287
OPERATING DATA

Sales volume of marine fuel

mntrin tnns151 2267282 2427282 fs2flfl256 8122755 10308210
Number of markets served

end of period161 5.0 11.0 14.0 16.0

Number of operating bunkering

vessels end of period171 12.0 17.0 300 38.0 52.0

Average number of operating

bunkering vessels171161 11.1 13.5 22.7 33.7 48.1

Specialty tankers end of period

Special purpose vessels

end of period191

Number of owned storage facilities

und uf pcriud1

On November 17 2005 we filed registration statement on Form in connection with an initial public offering ot

10000000 shares of our common stock In early 2006 we postponed further activities in connection with that offering

Accordingly during the year ended December 31 2006 we wrote off $1 million representing all deferred costs incurred

in connection with that offering

Amounts give effect to the 1.26 for one stock split effected November 21 2006 and the 24184.783 for one stock split

effected November 14 2005
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA conbnucd

Gross spread on mar ne petroleum products represents the margin that wc generatc on sales of mar ne fuel and lubricants

Gross rcad or marine fuel repres nts ti margin that wc generate on sa es of various cia sifications of mario fuel oil or

MPG or marine gas oil or MGO Gross pread on lubr cant represents th margin fLat we gencrafe on sacs of lubricants

Wc calculate the gros sprcads by subtracting from the sale of the respectivc marine petroleum product the cost of the

mars petro cum product sold and cargo franspoi fation costs For arrangerrcnfs in which we physically supp marine

pctroleum products ing our bunkering tankcrs costs of marine pet roleuri products sold rcpresenfs amourts paid by us

for marine pet role rn products in the re evant rcporf ng period For arrargemcrts in which marine petroleum products

are purcha ed from our rclated company Aegean Oil S.A or Acgean cost of marine petroleum products sold repre

ants the total ariounf paid by us to thc phy cal supplier foi marire petroleum products and their delivery to our cusfomcrs

For arrangcmcrfs which we puicha cargos for our floating storage acilifies cargo transporfat on costs are either

included the purcha price of marinc fuels hat rae paid to the supplier or paid separately by us to third party franspor

fat ion pro der Gre sprcad per tric ton of mario fuel old presents fhc marg ns we generatc pcr mctric ton of marire

fu sold We calcu ate gross spread per tr ton of mar ne fucl so by viding the gros pread on marine fuel by the

al volume of marine fuel Marine fuol saics do not inc ude ales of lubr carts Ike tel owing table reflects the calcu ation

of gross spread pet metric on of marine uc sold for the per od presented

ortlo ear id dD cOmb r31

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Se of ierino tm eun rodricts

Cost marri pctmol ours product

Lcss rpo trar portatior csts

Cross pm ad marirc pctrof on prod ra

Gros spr ad Iubrrrai

790.657

728 637

620

4s

rr rio irIs

31 .849

25 712

4466

671

536

U5 ti iS

2768 067

2594 443

12 061

16006

38

55 oth first it

2449 445 4954599

66960 4723723

387 12343

t6 438 218533

755 2221

Gm pro tori niirno tic 61.rss 9.13 159 6ff 173743 216312

Safe rio of riiamrr fu fm trrc tori

Gre pnderrr to onoirrarrclu dfU to rsf

.367 283

260

34 7.269

2-3

5200256

307

t92 7o5 10308210

21.0

Thc fol owing fahlc reconcil our gross pread on marine pe rolcum products old to th most recfly comparable United

Stat neral ac epted account ng principles or GAAF measurr operating ircom for periods prcsenfed

ar Fnded Ge ember 31

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

ii own us aiwr

Gross pm ad 00 rrarrre potro um produc ff020 89671 160963 176 498 218533

Add Voyajc roicnucs 11 639 5.758 379 9044 7261

Add tO rrev mu 16 1266 8526 471 9775

Adi Garn/flos ens Ic of vessc 2.693 4094 1540
Ad Cargo trar portafron Is 466 12661 o9 12343

Los Saarre au afod cost 11 871f 124 363f f41.666f f47 708 67378

prccratren f4 240 f6 37Sf 12604 f16.792f 21092
Le An ort cation ft 684 f3 224 f3 953 f4.886f 6806

Marag most few f223f f54f

Loss Off op rating wpcnscs f25 607 f39.042f f73 157 f79 492 109270

Operating ir Si 30460 30 98 52149 59216 41826

The amount that we hay to pay for marine ptroleum product to fulfill cusfomcr order has been the primary variablc in

determin op fh priccs quotcd to customeis TI er fore we evaluate gross spread per metric ton of marine fuel sold and

gre spread on marine petroleum product in pricing nd vidual transactions and in long tcrm strafcgic pr cing decisions

We act vely monitor our pricing and sourcing strateg es in ordci to optimi7e our gross pread on marine petroleum prod

uct Wc helievc that this measure is important to investors because is an effcctive infcrmediafc performance mea ure of

thc sfrength of our operations

Gross spread on mario petro eunu products including gro pread on marine uel and gross spread on lubricants and

gro spread per nuefric ton of marine fucl old should not he considcied as alternafivs to opera ing inconue net income

or her GAAF ures ar may not be comparab sim larly fled measures of ofl er companics Gross pread

on mann petroleum products and gross spread metric ton of marine fucl sold do not reflect certain direct and indirect

co fs of dcliv ng marine petroleum products to our customer such as crew salaries vessel depreciation storage costs

other vessc opcrat ng cxpcn and overhead costs or other costs of doing bus ness

For all od pre ented we purchased mar nc petroleum pioducts in Greece from our re ated company Aegean Oil

which plays cal suppl er in Grecce he cost of thes marine petroleum products was contractual cal ulafed basod on

Aeg at Oi actual cost of fI ese product plus margin For further scu sion please fer to the sect on of fbi report

cofiflod Mal Shar holdei and Related Farfy Trarsac ions
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EBITDA rcpresen net ircnrre before interest taxes depreciation and amurtizatior EBITDA doe rot apr sent and

should not be considercd as an alternatvc to net income operating income or any othcr indicator Company pertor

mancc determined by GAAP at our calculation ot EBITDA iay not bc comparab to that portcd by otl er

comparies EBITuA ircluded Lcre bccaus it is has upon which thc Lompary as esscs its operat ng pertorrranco

ard becaus the Company bclievcs that it prmsonts usntu intoirration to nv stois gaiding th Compai ab lity to

service and/or ncur irdebtedness The tol owing tablc rocorciles net incorrc to EBI DA tor thu poi ods proscrtod

kur th 7cm cnd but ol

2006 2007 2000 009 2010

ru

2t 2u 738 o3315 48 25

31 14 11 76 10

1873 1r1

9F97 16 216f8

34 182 .826 73

The sales volume ot marire tuci is tI volum ot sales ot MFO and MOO tor th re ai pcriud and dci oiru at

tric tons We do not utilize thc sales vu ume of lubricarts as an dic toi

Thc number ot markets served nc udes our operations at our sei ce ccnter the Unit Arat Em Cibraltar

Jamaica Singaporc Northern Europe Belgium ard Ncthcrlard We Atrica Ghana Vancouv Port and

Southern Caribbean Trinidad and Tobago Tang ers Morocco Las Palma Cai ar land and Graccc wh we

conduct operations through our dated company Augean Cil as wcll as our ad opcratiun Mci ti and Mcx co

The number ot markcts served is an md uatoi ot the geographica distr hut on ot ui op iat ni ar att ts Lou th

amount ot venues and expenses that we iecori dur ng vei pm ud We cumn pLy ca ip opci tiors

Singapore on June 2006 in Northmn Bump 01 Oc ob 2007 in Chai son uary 2008 Lcrtland on

April 2008 in Carada ard Mexco on July 2008 in Tunidad ai Tobago oi April 008 laig uis Mui cco on

Augcct 25 2009 in Antwarp Butt rdam Sm tnriarl rcgin or 5pM U1U at in a0 irr
Cid 03

Bunkcrng vessels includcs both bunkering tankcrs ard barge Li ta doc rut ncludc our puc puupos se

Orion 550 dwt tanker which is based in Greecc

Average numhcr ot operat ng bunkering yes the numbcr of op iating bunl cring vc cI oui ut toi thc rc cvant

period measured by the sum of the number ot day cach hurkcring vcssl was uscd pail of our tIc dur rg tI

period dv dcd by the cumulativ umber ot calerdar day in the period mu tiplied by th ruinL ot opcratinJ inkcr ng

vessel at the end of the period Thi gure does not ta in account non opera ing days due to ci srh Vu ed or

ursukeduled maintenance

This gure in ludcs our rvice tanker Orion based ir Greece

10 This tigure inc udes our threc Panamax tar kcre Foe II ai 00 and one Atiarlax tanker dcr tloat rg

storage facilities in bnara hibratar anu the United Arau Em rates raspuctv ly uur Parai iax tam uuuano has not

bean used storage taci
ity ircc October 2010 and currently dl Additional our tankcr Acgcan IX had ai

us as tloating stoiaga tacility in Jama ca urti the tourtl quartcr ot 2009 whur th vessel wa soIl In Novcn bar 2009

we ant red into an agr ament wth third party purchasei to se the Aegean IX wh cL deli orcd comb 200g

Duurg 2010 we acpuircd barge the Mcd tcrranean which operates tloat ng stoiage tacili Ou 0cc ard small

barge Tapuit wOO operat as floatirg storage tac lity in Northern part of our acquuud comp nys Vcrbekc

Bus ness fleet The Company Las so on land stoi age tacilitius Portland and Las Palma Canaiy lands

The owrersh ot tloating storage tacilitia al owe us to mitigatc risk ot supply el oitagc Gen ral sturag costs aie

inc uded in thc price ot retinad marine tuel puoted by ocal supplicis Wu 0xpc that the owneu ot tio
sting storage

facilities will allow us to cony it the variable costs of storage fcc mark up pcr tr ton punted by upp iar into rix

00 ts of operating our own storagc facilities thus enablu us to praad larger ales volumes ovcr ixud cost ba and

to dccraasa our marine patrolauun uroducts costs

Net uu come

Add Nuttmonuungu at

Add Inuomu taxus

Add Dupreuuot on and am rturatuou

FBI 04

18733

17320

2161

27698

66112
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The following managements disoussion and analysis

of the results of our operations and our finanoial oondi

tion should be read in conjunction with the finanoial

statements and the notes to those statements inoluded

elsewhere in this report This disoussion includes

forward looking statements that involve risks and

uncertainties Our actual results may differ materially

from those anticipated in these forward-looking state

ments as result of many factors such as those set

forth in the section entitled Risk Factors and else

where in this report

OPERATING RESULTS

General

We are marine fuel logistics company that physically

supplies and markets refined marine fuel and lubri

cants to ships in port at sea and at rivers As physi

cal supplier we purchase marine fuel from refineries

major oil producers and other sources and resell and

deliver these fuels using our bunkering tankers to

broad base of end users

We sell marine petroleum products to customers pri

manly at margin over PLATTS prices benchmark
market prices PLATTS prices are quoted daily by

region and by terms of delivery We have not had

significant number of long term written agreements

with customers Under typical sales contract cus

tomer requests that we quote fixed price per metric

ton for the sale and delivery of specified volume and

classification of marine fuel on given date The cus

tomer requests quotation several days prior to the

delivery date We generally do not quote prices for

periods in excess of one week Once an agreement

has been made with customer we are deemed to be

bound to deliver the specified quantity and classifica

tion of marine fuel at the quoted fixed price on the

specified delivery date to an identified vessel at

named location We remain responsible for securing

the supply of marine fuel from the supplier and for

delivering the marine fuel to the customers vessel

We purohase marine petroleum products from reputa

ble suppliers under either long term supply contracts

or on the spot markets at margin over PLATTS

prices Except for our service centers in Gibraltar

Ghana the United Arab Emirates and Las Palmas

we generally take deliveries of the products on the day

of or few days prior to the delivery of the products

to the customers vessel In Gibraltar Ghana the

United Arab Emirates and Las Falmas utilizing

our storage facilities we take deliveries of the prod

ucts generally more than one but less than two weeks

prior to delivery of the products to our customers The

cost of our marine fuel purchases is generally fixed at

the date of loadinq from the suppliers premises

Generally under our long term supply contracts the

supplier undertakes to supply us with minimum

quantity of marine fuel per month subject to maxi

mum Price calculations vary from supplier to supplier

in terms of the suppliers margins the referenced

PLATTS prices and the calculation of the average

PLATTS price Depending on the agreement with each

supplier the referenced PLATTS price could be the

spot price or an average price over specified period

We deliver marine petroleum products to our cus

tomers mainly through our bunkering tankers We

are responsible for paying our tankers operating

expenses including the cost of crewing insuring

repairing and maintaining the vessel spares and con

sumable stores tonnage taxes and other vessel-

related expenses Our bunkering tankers are not used

for the transportation of petroleum products across

oceans Accordingly significant portion of our yes

sel operating expenses are fixed or semi variable

e.g bunkering tankers insurance costs crew

wages and certain other costs are incurred irrespec

five of the number of sales deliveries if makes during

period and as group represent the most significant

operating expense for us other than the cost of marine

petroleum products sold

We incur overhead costs to support our operations In

general the logistics of purchasing selling and deliv

ering marine fuel to customers are managed and

coordinated by employees at our marketing and oper

afing office in Greece employees at our local service

centers and the crew of our bunkering tankers

Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations

We believe that the important measures for analyzing

trends in our results of operations consist of the

following

Sales Volume of Marine Fuel We define the sales

volume of marine fuel as the volume of sales of van

ous classifications of marine fuel oil or MFO
marine diesel oil or MDO and marine gas oil or

MGO for the relevant period measured in metric

tons The sales volume of marine fuel is an indica

tor of the size of our operations as it affects both

the sales and the cost of marine petroleum prod

ucts recorded during given period Sales volume

of marine fuel does not include the sales volume of

lubricants due to insignificant volumes for all peri

ods presented

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
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Gross Spread on Marine Petroleum Produots

and Gross Spread Per Metdo Ton of Manne Fuel

Sold Gross spread on marine petroleum produots

represents the margin that we generate on sales of

marine fuel and lubricants Gross spread on marine

fuel represents the margin that we generate on

sales of various classifications ot MFO or MOO
Gross spread on lubricants represents the margin

that we generate on sales of lubricants We calcu

fate the gross spreads by subtracting from the

sales of the respective marine petroleum product

the cost of the marine petroleum product sold and

cargo transportation costs For arrangements in

which we physically supply marine petroleum prod

ucts using our bunkering tankers costs of marine

The amount that we have to pay for marine petro

leum products to tulfill customer order has been

the primary variable in determining the prices

quoted to customers Therefore we evaluate gross

spread per metric ton of marine fuel sold and gross

spread on marine petroleum products in pricing

individual transactions and in long term strategic

2006

2006

petroleum products sold represent amounts paid

by us for marine petroleum products sold in the rel

evant reporting period For arrangements in which

marine petroleum products are purchased from our

related company Aegean Oil cost of marine petro

leum products sold represents the total amount

paid by us to the physical supplier for marine petro

leum products and their delivery to our customers

For arrangements in which we purchase cargos for

our floating storage facilities cargo transportation

costs are either included in the purchase price of

marine fuels that we paid to the supplier or paid

separately by us to third party transportation

provider

2009 2010

2010

pricing decisions We actively monitor our pricing

and sourcing strategies in order to optimize our

gross spread on marine petrolaum products We

believe that this measure is important to investors

because it is an effective intermediate performance

measure of the strength of our operations

Gross spread per metric ton of marine fuel sold represents the margins we generate per metric ton of marine

fuel sold We calculate gross spread per metric ton of marine fuel sold by dividing the gross spread on marine

fuel by the sales volume of marine fuel Marine fuel sales do not include sales of lubricants The following table

reflects the calculation of gross spread per metric ton of marine fuel sold for the periods presented

For the Year Ended December 31

2007 2008

Sales of marine petroleum products

Less Cost of marine petroleum products sold

Less Cargo transportation costs

Gross spread on marine petroleum products

Less Gross spread on lubricants

in

790657

728637

62020

455

thousands of

1.345849

1251712

4466

89671

536

U.S dollars unless

2768067

2594443

12661

160963

1298

otherwise slated

2449445 4954599

2266960 4723723

5987 12343

176498 218533

2755 2221

Gross spread on marine fuel 61565 e9135 159665 173743 216312

Sales volume of marine fuel fmetric tons

Gross spread per metric ton of marine fuel sold

dollars

2367289

26.0

3437269

25.9

5200256

307

6192755

28

10308210

21.0

The following table reconciles our gross spread on marine petroleum products sold to the most directly com

parable U.S GAAF measure operating income tor all periods presented

For the Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 2009

in thousands of dollars

Gross spread on marine petroleum products 62020 89671 160963 176498 218533

Add Voyage revenues 11639 5758 1379 9044 7261

Add Cther revenues 1516 1266 8526 12471 9775

Add Gain/Loss on sale of vessel 2693 4094 1540
Add Cargo transportation costs 4466 12661 5987 12343
Less Salaries wages and related costs 12871 24363 41666 47708 67378
Less Depreciation 4240 6373 12604 16792 21092
Less Amortization 1684 3224 3953 4886 6806
Less Management tees 223 54
Less Other operating expenses 25697 39042 f73157 79492 109270

Operating income 30460 30798 52149 59216 41826
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Gross spread on marine petroleum products

including gre spread on marine fuel and gross

cprad on Inhrirants inn groco sprad por mwtrw

ton of marine tuel so shou not be considered

alternatives to operating income net income or

other GAAP measures and may not be com

parable to simi aily titled measures of other compa
nies Gross spread on marine petroleum pioducts

and gross spread per metric ton of marine fuel sold

do not ref ect certain direct and indirect costs of

de ivering mar ne petroleum products to our cus

tomers suct as crew salaries vessel deprec ation

Number of Markets Served The number of markets

served include our operations at our service

centers in the United Arab Emirates Gibraltar

Jamaica Singapore Northern Europe Belgium

and Netherlands West Africa Vancouver Portland

UI Trinidad and Tobago Southern Caribbean

Tangiers Morocco Las Palmas Canary Islands

and Greece where we conduct operations through

our related company Aegean Gil as well as our

trading operations in Montreal and Mexico The

number of markets served is an indicator of the

geographical distribution ot our operations and

affects both the amount of revenues and expenses

that we record dur ng given period We com

menced physical supply operations in Singapore

on lone 2006 in Nnrthern Piirnpe on Crtoher

2007 in Ghana on January 15 2008 in Portland

U.K on April 2008 in Canada and Mexico on

Juy 2008 in Trinidad and Tobago on April

storage costs hire charges other vessel operating

expenses and overhead costs or other costs ot

doing buinwss

Per all periods presented we purchased marine

petroleum products in Greece from our related

company Aegean Gil which is physical supplier

in Greece The cost of these marine petroleum

products was contractually calculated based en

Aegean Gil actual cost of these products plus

margin Per turther discussion please refer to the

section et this report entitled Major Shareholders

and Belated Party Transactions

2006 2010

2009 in Tangiers Morocco en August 25 2009 in

Antwerp Retterdam Amsterdam region on April

2010 and in Las Palmas en July 2010

Average Number of Operatteg Bucketing Vessels

Average number 0f operating bunkering vssIs is

the number of operating bunkering vessels in our

fleet for the relevant period as measured by the

sum of the number of days each bunkering vessel

was used as part of our fleet during the period

divided by the cumulative number of calendar days

in the period multiplied by the number of operating

bunkering vessels at the end of the period This fig

ure does not take into account non operating days

due to either scheduled or unscheduled mainte

nance The average number of operating bunkering

vessels is an indicator ot the size of our fleet and

operations and affects both the amount et revenues

and expenses that we record during given period

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS continued

EBITDA represents net incon bcforc interest taxes depreciation and amortization EBITDA does net repre

sent ard should not be considercd as an alternative to net income operating income or any other indicator of

the Company performance as determincd by U.S GAAP and our calculatior of EBITDA may net be compa
rable to that reported by other companies EBITDA is included herein because it is basis upon which we

asses our performance and bcause we believe that it presents useful information to investors regarding

Companys abi
ity to servic3 and/or incur indeb edress The following table reconcile net income to EBITDA

for the periods presented

For the ar Ended December 31

2007 2008 2009

fin thousands or do/tans

Net ncom 24225 27738 39915 48525 18733

Add tfnancingce 4231 1483 11.876 10209 17320

Add trcemc taxes 879 153 2161

Add Depreciation and amortization 5924 9597 16557 21.678 27898

LBITDA 34382 38826 70227 80565 66112
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The following table reflects our sales volume of marino

fuel gross spread on marine petroleum products

qross spread per metric ton of marine fuel sold num

ber of service centers and average number of operat

ing bunkering vessels for the periods indicated

Sales volume

of marine fuel

metric tons

Gross spread on

marine netrn

leum products

Gross spread per

metric ton of

marine fuel sold

dollars

Number of markets

served end of

period

Average number

of operating bun

kering vessels

Year Ended December 31

2ccs sees 2010

in thousands of U.S dollars

unless otherwise stated

Sates of Marine Petroleum Products and

Gross Spread on Marine Petroleum Products

Our sales of marine petroleum products and gross

spread on marine petroleum products consist of the

sales revenue and gross spread that we generate on

sales of marine fuel and lubricants

Our sales of marine petroleum products are driven pri

manly by the number of our service centers the num
ber of operating bunkering tankers in our fleet our

sales prices and our credit terms and credit control

process Ttie cost uf tniarine petroleum pruducts sold

is driven primarily by availability of marine petroleum

products our purchasing methods supplier cost

prices and credit terms and our internal quality control

processes These drivers in turn are affected by

number of factors including

our entrance into new markets

our purchasing methods of marine petroleum

products

our marketing strategy

our vessel acquisitions and disposals

FLATTS prices

conditions in the international shipping and the

marine fuel supply industries

regulation of the marine fuel supply industry

regulation of the tanker industry

levels of supply of and demand for marine petro

leum products

levels of competition and

other factors affecting our industry

We sell and deliver marine petroleum products to

broad and diversified customer base including inter

national commercial shipping companies govern

ments and marine fuel traders and brokers For the

years ended December 31 2005 2009 and 2010

none of our customers accounted for more than 10%

of our total revenues

16.0 In addition to our physical supply operations from

time to time we may act as broker generally in loca

tions where we do not have service centers This busi

48.1
ness involves activities whereby we contract with

third party physical suppliers to sell us marine fuel

and to deliver the marine fuel to customer in the rel

evant location Accordingly our trading activities do

not involve our physical possession of marine fuel and

require less complex logistical operations and infra

structure As such we typically earn significantly

lower gross spread from our trading activities than

from our physical supply activities

We purchase and take delivery of marine petroleum

products from various suppliers under long term vol

ume contracts or on the spot market Long term sup

ply contracts from third parties allow us to minimize

our exposure to supply shortages In general at each

of our service centers except for Gibraltar Morocco

the United Arab Emirates West Africa and Las Palmas

we purchase from local supply sources

Our cost of marine petroleum products includes pun

chases from related companies In Greece we pun

chase marine petroleum products under ten year

supply contract that commenced on April 2005

from our related company Aegean Oil which changes

us its actual cost of the marine petroleum products

plus margin We believe the amounts we have paid

to our related company are comparable to amounts

that we would have negotiated in arms length trans

actions with unaffiliated third panties For further dis

cussion of our marine petroleum products purchases

from Aegean Oil please refer to the section of this

report entitled Majon Shareholders and Related Panty

Transactions

The commercial shipping industry generally pun-

200256 6192755 10308210 chases marine fuel on spot basis and historically we

have not had any long term sales volume contracts

160963 176498 218533
with customers un March 2uDe however we

entered into two-year contract to supply minimum

quantities of fuel to commercial customer in Jamaica

As we expand our global network and increase our

307 28.1 21.0 geographical coverage we expect some of our cus

tomens to enter into long term sales volume contracts

110

22

140

33.7
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS continued

The following tab reflects our cost of marine petro

leum products sold incurred from third party suppliers

and from our related company suppliers tor the ceri

ods indicated

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

In rho us 9nds of do//ar

Third party

supp era 2242911 1999193 4420103

Related ccmpany

suppi ers 351532 267767 303620

Tota 2594443 2266 960 4723723

We ceek tn increace nor calec nf marine petrnleum

products and our gross spread on marine petroleum

products on an integrated basis through expansion

into new markets acquis tions of double hull bunker

ing tankers and the diversification and further optimi

zatior of purchasing methods Our gross spread on

marine petroleum products differs for each of our ser

vice centers ref ecting the different competitive condi

tions that exist in the markets served by them Factors

affecting competitive conditions in market that we

service include customer demand availability of sup

plies and the stlerlgth and riuiriber uf suiripetituis that

operate in the market We believe that for any new ser

vice centers that we may establish gross spread on

marine petroleum products may be lower than for our

existing service centers We also believe that the com

petitive conditions in the markets served by our exist

ing service centers may generally be more favorable

to us than those in other markets that we may consider

for future expansion

Voyage Revenues

Our vuyage revenues are prirriari derived from the

employment of our vessels Aegean Ill Aegean VIII

Aegean XII Aegean Daisy Aegean Rose Aegean
Breeze and Aegean Tiffany under contract with an

unaffiliated third party for the distribution of refined

marine petroleum products in Greek ports During the

year ended December 31 2010 we recognzed $62

million revenue under this contract

Apart from the above agreement that was signed in

2009 our voyage revenues in 2008 and 2009 were

denved from he employment of our specialty tanker

with roll on roll off facilities and refueling capabilities

for fuel trucks and from the employment of our bunker

ing tankers based in Greece In 2008 we employed

our double hull specialty tanker Maistros under

contract of affreightment with Aegean Oil for the distri

bution of gasoline and other refined petroleum prod

ucts in the Greek islands This contract was terminated

on June 10 2009 when we sold the two specialty

tankers Maistros ard Ostria to an unaffiliated third

party purchaser

Salaries Wages and Related Costs

We employ salaried employees at our offices in

Greece New York Oity Belcium and at each of our

service centers Furthermore we employ crews for our

bunkering tankers under short4erm contracts The

majority of our salaries wages and related costs are

for our salaried employees and vessel crews Oosts

relating to our salaried employees are mainly incurred

at our office in Greece and in Belgium where most of

our sales and marketing operations technical

accounting and finance departments are located and

at our administrative office in New York Oity from

where we oversee our financial and other reporting

functions Wa maintain minimal number of salaried

employees at our service centers where we typically

employ local operations manager and staff to sup

port the logistical aspects of our operations

The follow ng table reflects salaries wages and costs

related to our crews and salaried employees

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

in rhou ands of US do//ars

Shipboard personnel 21 017 23546 29327

shore ide personnei aus4st 24lbu 38051

Tota 41666 47708 67378

Our salaries wages and related costs have grown

over the past several years mainly due to our expan

sion and the increase in crew wages as we have

added bunkering vessels to our fleet We expect that

the amount of salaries wages and related costs will

continue to increase as result of our further expan

sion into new markets and planned acquisitions of

additional double hull bunkering tankers and storage

facilities and the consolidation of the full year profit

and losses of our acquisitions during 2010

Depreciation

The cost of our vessels depreciates on straight line

basis over the expected useful life of each vessel We

expect that these charges will continue to increase

with lower rates primari as result of our planned

acquisitions of additional bunkering tankers and the

consolidation of the full year profit and losses of our

acquisitions during 2010

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses primarily include the oper

ating expenses of our vessels including vessel hire

charges the cost of insurance expenses relating to

repairs and maintenance which does not include

amortizat on of drydocking costs the cost of spares

and consumable stores consumption of marine petro

leum products and other miscellaneous expenses

Our bunkering vessel operating expenses which gen

erally represent fixed costs have historically increased
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as result of the enlargement of our fleet We expect

these expenses to continue to increase with lower

rates however as result of our planned acquisition of

additional hunkering vessels and the consolidation of

the full year profit and losses resulting from our acqui

sitions during 2010

Other operating expenses also include expenses

relating to rent communal charges advertising travel

public relations and auditing and legal fees We expect

these expenses to remain stable due to our com

mitment to restrain the general and administrative

expenses

Othnr npnrrtting nxpnnsns innltirlp prnvisinn für

doubtful accounts We believe that our provision for

doubtful accounts has been relatively low in the past

several years due to our effective credit control proc

ess and we expect it will remain at low levels

Finally other operating expenses include amounts

re ating to the storage of marine petroleum products

resulting from acquisitions and use of floating storage

facilities such as our tankers Ouranos Fos II Leader

Mediterranean Aeolos and Tapuit and our on land

storage facilities in Portland and Las Falmas We
believe that the ownership of storage facilities will

allow us to mitigate the risk of supply shortages

Generally the costs of storage have been included in

the price per metric ton quoted by local suppliers of

refined marine fuel Accordingly we expect that the

ownership of storage facilities will allow us to convert

the variable costs of this storage fee markup per met

nc ton quoted by suppliers into fixed costs of operat

ing our storage facilities allowing us to spread larger

sales volumes over fixed cost base and to decrease

nur rfind marin tuwl rnntc

Interest and Finance Costs

We have historically incurred interest expense and

financing costs in connection with long term debt to

partially finance the acquisitions of our vessels and in

connection with short term bank borrowings obtained

for working capital purposes In connection with our

initial public offering we repaid and terminated por

tion of our outstanding indebtedness Subsequently

we have incurred and expect to continue incurring

intrst epnse and financing rnsts under our wYist

ing credit facilities to finance the construction of our

new bunkering tankers and our senior secured credit

facilities We expect that interest and finance costs

will increase further due to our increased drawdowns

under our credit facilities to finance the expansion of

our fleet and capital expenditures

Income Taxes

We are incorporated in the Marshall Islands Under

Marshall Islands law we are not ubtect to tax on

income or capital gains Under the laws of the coun

tries of incorporation of our vessel owning subsidiaries

and our subsidiaries that operate service centers and

the laws of the countries of our vessels registration

our vessel-owning companies are generally not sub

ject to tax on our income that is characterized as ship

ping income

Our corporate income tax exposure is in taxable jur

isdictions such as Gibraltar Jamaica Singapore

Belgium the United Kingdom and Oanada

Our business is affected by taxes imposed on the pur

chase and sale of marine petroleum products in van

nus jiirisrlirtinns in which npwratw frnm timw tn tim

These taxes include income sales excise goods and

services taxes value-added taxes and other taxes

Other than in Canada and Belgium we do not pay

material amount of tax in any jurisdiction in which we

operate For the years ended December 31 2008

2009 and 2010 our income tax amounted to $1.9 mu

lion $0 mi lion and $2.2 million respectively The

income tax amounts in 2009 and 2010 were mainly

attributable to our Canadian and Belgian operations

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31 2010 Compared to the

Year Ended December 31 2009

Sa/es of Marine Petroleum Products Sales of marine

petroleum products increased by $2505 million

or 102.3c to $4954.6 million for the year ended

December 31 2010 compared to $2449.4 million for

the year ended December 31 2009 Of the total

increase in sales of marine petroleum products

$533.4 million was attributable to 221% increase in

cia average price uf marine fuel using sales volumes

for the year ended December 31 2009 $1959.3 mil

lion was attributable to an increase in sales volume of

marine fuel using average prices for the year ended

December 31 2010 and $12 million was attribut

able to an increase in the sales of lubricants Sales

volume of marine fuel increased by 4115455 metric

tons or 66.5c to 10308210 metric tons for the year

ended December 31 2010 compared to 6192755

metric tons for the year ended December 31 2009

due to additional volume of sales of marine fuel in the

United Arab Emirates Singapore and Morocco and

due to sales in our new markets ARA region and Las

Falmas Canary Islands

Gross Spread on Marine Petroleum Products Gross

spread on marine petroleom products increased by

$42.0 million or 23.8c to $218.5 million for the year

ended December 31 2010 compared to $176.5 mu

lion for the year ended December 31 2009 The

increase in our gross spread on marine petroleum

products mainly resulted from the increased sales
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volume of marine fuel Our gross spread per metric

ton of marine fuel sold during the year ended Decem

ber 31 2010 decreased by $7.1 million or 25.3% to

$21.0 million compared to $28.1 million for the year

ended December 31 2009 Gross spreads per metric

ton do not generally increase or decrease proportion

ately with the price of marine fuel Accordingly gross

spread on marine petroleum products as percent

age of total revenues decreased from 7.1c for the

year ended December 31 2009 to 4.4% for the year

ended December 31 2010 Gross spread on marine

petroleum products and gross spread per metric ton

of marine fuel sold are non U.S GAAP measures and

should not be considered as alternatives to operating

income net income or other U.S GAAP measures

and may not be comparable to similarly titled mea
sures of other companies Please refer to the section

entitled Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations

for reconciliation of gross spread on marine petro

leum products to the most directly comparable U.S

GAAP measure

Voyage Revenues Voyage revenues decreased by

$1.8 million or 19.8c to $7.3 million for the year

ended December 31 2010 compared to $9.1 million

for the year ended December 31 2009 Voyage reve

nues for the year ended December 31 2010 were

attributable to the employment of five of our bunkering

tankers with an unatfiliated third party for the distribu

tion of refined marine petroleum products in Greek

ports Voyage revenues for the year ended December

31 2009 were attributable to the employment of our

specialty tanker Maistros under the contract of

affreightment with Aegean Oil which commenced on

October 2008 and from the employment of seven

of our bunkering tankers with an unaffiliated third party

for the distribution of refined marine petroleum prod
ucts in Greek ports

Salaries Wages and Related Cosfs Salaries wages

and related costs increased by $19.7 million or 41.3%

to $67.4 million for the year ended December 31 2010

compared to $47.7 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 This increase was mainly due to

an increase in the number of full time employees as

we hired new employees to manage our expanded

fleet and service center network and due to our

expansion to new markets Furthermore crew costs

increased as the average number of operating bunker

ing vessels increased to 48.1 for the year ended

December 31 2010 compared to 33 for the year

ended December 31 2009

Depreciation Depreciation increased by $4.3 million

or 25.6c to $21.1 million for the year ended December

31 2010 compared to $16.8 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 This increase is in line with the

42.7c increase in the average number of operating

bunkering vessels

Other Operating Expenses Other operating expenses

increased by $29.8 million or 37.5% to $109.3 million

for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to

$79.5 million for the year ended December 31 2009

This increase in other operating expenses was primar

ily attributable to the vessel hire charges of the new

acquisition the higher cost on marine fuel consump

tion and to the cargo transportation costs as result of

the operation of new market

Interest and Finance Costs Interest and finance costs

increased by $7.1 million or 68.9% to $17.4 million for

the year ended December 31 2010 compared to

$10.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009

The increase in interest and finance costs was mainly

attributable to the increase in the working capital to

finance our expansion

Year Ended December 31 2009 Compared to the

Year Ended December 31 2008

Sales of Manne Petroleum Products Sales of marine

petroleum products decreased by $318.7 million

or 11 5% to $2449.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 compared to $2768.1 million for

the year ended December 31 2008 Of the total

decrease in sales of marine petroleum products

$724.3 million was attributable to 26.3% decrease in

the average price ot marine fuel using sales volumes

for the year ended December 31 2008 $387.0 million

was attributable to an increase in sales volume of

marine fuel using average prices for the year ended

December 31 2009 and $18.6 million was attribut

able to an increase in the sales of lubricants Sales

volume of marine fuel increased by 992499 metric

tons or 19.1% to 6192755 metric tons for the year

ended December 31 2009 compared to 5200256

metric tons for the year ended December 31 2008

due to additional volume of sales of marine fuel in the

United Arab Emirates Singapore and Canada and

due to sales in our new markets Trinidad and Tobago

and Tanger Med Morocco

Gross Spread on Marine Petroleum Products Gross

spread on marine petroleum products increased by

$15.5 million or 6% to $176.5 million for the year

ended December 31 2009 compared to $161.0 mil

lion for the year ended December 31 2008 The

increase in our gross spread on marine petroleum

products mainly resulted from the increased sales vol

ume of marine fuel Our groSs spread per metric ton of

marine fuel sold during the year ened December 31

2009 decreased by $2.6 or 8.5% tg $28.1 compared

to $30.7 for the year ended December 31 2008

Gross spreads per metric ton do not generally increase

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS continued
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or decrease proportionately with the price ot marine

fuel Accordingly gross spread on marine petroleum

products as percentage of total revenues increased

from 5.8% for the year ended December 31 2008 to

7.1% for the year ended December 31 2009 Gross

spread on marine petroleum products and gross

spread per metric ton of marine fuel sold are non

GAAP measures and should not be considered as

alternatives to operating income net income or other

GAAP measures and may not be comparable to simi

larly
titled measures of other companies Please refer

to the section entitled Factors Affecting Our Results

of Operations for reconciliation of gross spread on

marine petruleum pruducts tu the must direutly cuni

parable GAAF measure

Voyage Revenues Voyage revenues increased by

$7.7 million or 550 0o to $9.1 million for the year

ended December 31 2009 compared to $1.4 million

for the year ended December 31 2008 Voyage reve

nues for the year ended December 31 2009 were

attributable to the employment of our specialty tanker

Maistros under the contract of affreightment with

Aegean Oil which commenced on October 2008

and frnm the wmplnyment nf nf nur hunkering

tankers with an unaffiliated third party for the distribu

tion of refined marine petroleum products in Greek

ports Voyage revenues for the year ended December

31 2008 were attributable to the employment of our

specialty tanker Maistros

Salaries Wages and Related Costs Salaries wages

and related costs increased by $6.0 million or 14.4%

to $47.7 million for the year ended December 31

2009 compared to $41.7 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 This increase was mainly due to

an increase in the number of full time employees as

we hired new employees to manage our expanded

fleet and service center network Furthermore crew

costs increased as the average number of operating

bunkering vessels increased to 33.7 for the year

ended December 31 2009 compared to 22.7 for the

year ended December 31 2008

Oepreciat/on Depreciation increased by $4.2 million

or 33 3c to $16.8 million for the year ended December

31 2009 compared to $12.6 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 This increase is in line with the

48.5% increase in the average number of operating

bunkering vessels

Other Operating Expenses Other operating expenses

increased by $6.3 million or 8.6c to $79.5 million for

the year ended December 31 2009 compared to

$73.2 million for the year ended December 31 2008

This increase in other operating expenses was primar

ily attributable to the higher cost on marine fuel con

sumption and to the increased overhead costs

Interest and Finance Costs Interest and finance costs

decreased by $2.1 million or 16.9c to $10.3 million

for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to

$124 million for the year ended December 31 2008

The decrease in interest and finance costs was mainly

attributable to the decrease in the interest rates

Inflation

Inflation has had only moderate effect on our expenses

given recent economic conditions In the event that

significant global inflationary pressures appear these

pressures would increase our operating costs

CRITICAL ACCCl INJTINC PCI ICIFS

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition

and results of operations is based upon our consoli

dated financial statements which have been prepared

in accordance with U.S GAAF The preparation of

such financial statements requires us to make esti

mates and judgments that affect the reported amounts

of assets and liabilities revenues and expenses and

related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at

the date of our financial statements Historically our

estimates have been fairly accurate however actual

rusults nay diffur fruni thusu astiniatus undur diffurunt

assumptions and conditions

Critical accounting policies are those that reflect

significant judgments of uncertainties and potentially

result in materially different results under different

assumptions and conditions We have described below

what we believe to be our most critical accounting

policies because they generally involve compara

tively higher degree of judgment in their application

For description of all our significant accounting poli

cies see Not fn ur consulidated financial stat

ments included herein

Trade Receivables and Allowance for

Doubtful Accounts

We extend credit on an unsecured basis to many of

our customers There is uncertainty over the level of

coliectability of customer accounts Our management

is responsible for approving credit limits above certain

amounts setting and maintaining credit standards

and managing the overall quality of our credit portfolio

We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our cus

tomers and adjust credit limits based upon payment

history and the customers current creditworthiness

Accounts receivable are deemed past due based on

contractual terms agreed with our customers

We continuously monitor collections and payments

from our customers and maintain provision for esti

mated credit losses based upon our historical experi

ence with our customers current market and industry

conditions of our customers and any specific cus

tomer collection issues that we have identified
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS continued

Accounts and notes receivable are reduced by an

allowance for amounts that may become uncollectible

in tbw fIitHrP At th wnri it wach rwpnrting pwrind

calculate an allowance for doubtful accounts based

on an aging schedule where we apply set percent

ages to categories of overdue trade receivables

These set percentages are based on historical expe
rience and currently available management informa

tion on customer accounts Furthermore we provide

appropriate allowances for any specific customer

collection issue we identify which allowance is calcu

lated on case by case basis Trade receivables are

written off when it becomes apparent based upon age

or custunior oirouriibtaiiueb that buoh arriouuts will riot

be collected

We believe the level ot our allowance for doubtful

accounts is reasonable based on our experience and

our analysis of the net realizable value of our trade

receivables during each reporting period The esti

mates driving the calculation of our allowance for

doubttul accounts have not changed in the past pen

ods and we do not expect these estimates to change

in the foreseeable future because they have resulted

and we believe that they will continue to rasult in accu

rate calculations of our allowance for doubtful accounts

We cannot guarantee that we will continue to experi

ence the same credit loss rates that we have experi

enced in the past since adverse changes in the

marine industry or changes in the liquidity or financial

position of our customers could have material

adverse effect on the collectability of our trade receiv

ables and our future operating results If credit losses

exceed established allowances our results of opera

tions and tinancial condition may be adversely affected

Depreciation

We record the value of our vessels at their cost which

includes acquisition costs directly attributable to the

vessel and expenditures made to prepare the vessel

for its initial voyage less accumulated depreciation

We depreciate our vessels on straight line basis over

their estimated useful lives Depreciation is based on

cost less the estimated residual scrap value

We estimate the useful lives for our bunkering and

in land waterway tankers to be 30 years and 45 years

respectively from the date of initial delivery to us from

the shipyard Furthermore we estimate the useful life

of our floating storage facilities to be 30 years from the

date of acquisition We estimate the residual scrap

values of our vessels to be $175 per light weight ton

We torm these estimates based on our experience

and the prevailing practices of other companies in the

bunkering and shipping industries

An increase in the estimated useful life of tanker or in

its estimated residual value would have the effect of

drraing tha annual dwprwniatinn rhRrgw and

extending it into later periods decrease in the esti

mated useful life of tanker or in its estimated residual

value would have the eftect of increasing the annual

depreciahon charge 20c decrease in the remain

ing estimated useful lives of our vessels would

increase our depreciation charge for the year ended

December 31 2010 by $5.1 million

Estimates may need to be changed if new regulations

place limitations over the ability of vessel to trade on

worldwide basis This would cause us to adjust the

vessels useful life to end at the date such regulations

become effective

Our estimates of the useful lives of our vessels and ot

the residual scrap values of our vessels have not

changed in the past periods We do not expect these

est mates to change in the foreseeable future because

we believe they will continue to accurately represent

the useful lives of tanker vessels and the long term

scrap values of steel

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

We evaluate the carrying amounts of our long lived

assets to determine if events have occurred which

would require modification to their carrying values In

evaluating useful lives and carrying values of long-

lived assets we review certain indicators of potential

impairment such as vessel sale and purchase prices

in the marketplace business plans and overall market

conditions If an indicator of impairment exists we

determine undiscounted projected net operating cash

flow for each vessel or group of vessels and compare

it to the relevant carrying value In developing esti

mates of future cash flows the Company relied upon

estimates made by management with regard to the

Companys vessels including future deliveries oper

ating expenses and the estimated remaining useful

lives of the vessels These assumptions are based on

historical trends as well as future expectations and

are consistent with the plans and forecasts used by

management to conduct its business The variability of

these factors depends on number ot conditions

including uncertainty about future events and general

economic conditions theretore the Companys

accounting estimates might change from period to

period In the event that undiscounted projected net

operating cash tlows were less than carrying value

we would estimate the fair value of the related asset

and record charge to operations calculated by

comparing the assets carrying value to the estimated

fair value When performing impairrhent assessments

management would generally consider vessel valu

ation reports obtained from third party valuation

specialists
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The fair market value of the vessels that we currently

own or may acquire in the future may increase or

decrease depending on number of factors including

general economic and market conditions affecting the

international marine fuel supply industry supply and

demand for bunkering tankers costs of newbuildings

and governmental or other regulations If we sell any

vessel when vessel prices have fallen and before we

have recorded an impairment adjustment to our finan

cial statements the sale may be at less than the ves

sels carrying amount on our financial statements

resulting in loss Such loss could adversely affect

our financial condition results of operations and our

ability to pay dividends to our shareholders

Goodwill derived from our acquisitions is not amor

tized but reviewed as of December 31 of each year

for impairment The Company also evaluates goodwill

for impairment at any time that events occur or circum

stances change indicating possible impairment The

Company tests for goodwill impairment using the two-

step process The first step is screen for potential

impairment while the second step measures the

amount of impairment Fair values are derived using

discounted cash flow analysis

An event that may indicate the need for an impairment

assessment between annual reviews may include

decline in our stock price such that the market capital

ization is lower than the consolidated net book value It

is reasonably likely that this event may occur in the

near future and we will perform an interim impairment

test The outcome of this test will depend on assump
tions about future discounted cash flows which may
differ from historical assumptions due to current

market conditions The most significant assumptions

which are subject to management judgment include

those regarding revenue growth capacity utilization

and the future price of marine fuel products As

result we may record an impairment loss on goodwill

We have recorded no impairment loss in the current or

prior years presented

Deferred Drydock Cost

Our vessels are generally required to be drydocked

approximately every 30 to 60 months for major repairs

and maintenance that cannot be performed while the

vessels are operating We capitalize the costs asso

dated with drydockings as they occur and amortize

these costs on straight-line basis over the period

between drydockings Costs capitalized as part of

the drydocking include actual costs incurred at the

drydock yard and parts used in making such repairs

that are reasonably made in anticipation of reducing

the duration or cost of the drydocking cost of travel

lodging and subsistence of our personnel sent to the

drydocking site to supervise and the cost of hiring

third party to oversee drydocking We believe that

these types of capitalized costs are consistent with

practice among other companies in our industry that

apply this method of accounting and that our policy of

capitalization reflects the economics and market val

ues of the vessels

Year Ended December 31

2008

2009

2010

The table above discloses the average number of yes

sels that we have owned in each of the periods pre

sented and the drydock costs that we have reported

In the future depending on the date newly

purchased secondhand vessel is drydocked prior to

its delivery to us we may pay drydocking costs and

incur subsequent amortization expense of these costs

sooner after delivery than if the vessel had been

owned by us throughout its life This would increase

our average drydocking expenses in periods immedi

ately following the acquisition

Following acquisition of vessels under newbuilding

contracts we would expect to first pay drydocking

Bunkering Non-Bunkering As Repcrted As Incurred

in thousands of US do/tars

3640 6890

4574 5504

5805 10073

costs and incur subsequent amortization expense

of these costs approximately 30 months after the

delivery of the vessel from the shipyard This would

decrease our average drydocking expenses in pen

ods immediately following the acquisition since we

would have no such costs to amortize in respect of

these vessels until they were first drydocked

Our estimates of the frequency of required drydocking

of our vessels have not changes irf the past periods

We do not expect these estimates to change in the

future because we believe they will continue to accu

rately represent the frequency of drydocking inspec

tions necessary for the maintenance of our vessels

Although many companies in our industry apply this method of accounting for deferred drydock costs some

companies apply other methods of accounting such as expensing drydock costs as incurred If we were to adopt

that method of accounting as our accounting policy our drydock costs would have been as disclosed under the

heading As Incurred in the table below for the periods presented therein

Average Number ot Vessels Drydock Costs

22

33.7

48.1

4.8

5.4

7.6
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESCURCES

Cur treasury activities are controlled centrally by cur

treasury department which is located at our oftices

in Greece Cur treasury department administers our

working capital resources including our current

accounts time deposits overdratts and bank loans

Cur liquidity objective is to maintain an optimum daily

net cash position which takes into consideration imme
diate working capital and operational requirements as

wall as short to medium term capital expenditure

requirements but which would not result in an unnec

essary net cash surplus In this way we seek to maxi

mize available cash to reinvest in our business Cur

policy is to minimize the use ot time deposits financial

instruments or other forms of investments which we
believe generate lower levels of return than the return

on our invested capital

Cur cash is primarily denominated in U.S dollars

because our sales of marine petroleum products are

fully denominated in U.S dollars Cur service centers

pay their operating expenses in various currencies

primarily the Euro the UAE dirham the Gibraltar

pound the British pound the Canadian dollar the

Jamaican dollar and the Singapore dollar Cur trea

sury department transfers cash to our service centers

monthly on an as needed basis and accordingly we

maintain low levels of foreign currency at our service

centers

Under the laws of jurisdictions where our subsidiaries

are located there are currently no restrictions on the

export or import of capital including foreign exchange

controls or restrictions that materially affect the

Trade sred
facility

Senior secured revolving credit facility

Revolving credit facility

Revolving credit facility

Receivables credit and assignment agreement

Revolving credit facility

Loan facility with respect to ccmpany acquisition

Loan facility wth re0pect to on ncwbuilding

Revolving overdraft credit facility

Senior secured credit facility

Secured term loan with respect to three vessels

Secured term loan with respect to four new buildings

Secured syndicated term loan facil fy wifh respect to five newbuildings

Secured term loan facility under the 2006 senior secured credit facility

with respect to five newbuildings

Secured syndicated term loan facility with respect to seven newbuildings

Secured term ben facility with respect to two newhuildings

Secured term loan facility with respecf to three newbuildings

Secured syndicated term loan facility with respect to ye newbuildings

remittance of dividends loans interest or other pay

ments Most of our vessel owning subsidiaries have

lonq-term bank loans outstandinq that were obtained

to partially finance the acquisition cost of their vessels

Most of these vessel-owning companies are not per

mitted to pay any dividends without the lenders prior

consent However these vessel owning companies

generally do not generate third party revenues and do

not possess material amounts of excess cash There

fore these restrictions on our vessel-owning compa
nies ability to pay dividends to us should not materially

impact our ability to meet our cash obligations

Accordingly there are no significant restrictions on our

ability to access and mobilize our capital resources

located around the world

We have funded our business primarily through

cash generated from operations equity capital

and short term borrowings from our shareholders

Hi short-term borrowings from banks and iv long

term bank debt We have revolving credit facilities

that provide for borrowings up to certain amounts for

working capital purposes as well as sublimit for the

issuance of standby letters of credit Furthermore we

have long term debt facilities with several banks in

order to partially finance the acquisition costs of sev

eral of our vessels The credit agreements for the long-

term debt facilities are secured with first priority

mortgages over certain of our vessels As of December

31 2010 we believe that we were in compliance in all

material respects with all covenants of our credit facili

ties We also believe that our working capital resources

are sufficient for our present requirements

2009 2010

in millions of

dollars

60.1

500

52.2

40.0

50.0

3.0

3.5

2.8

1.6

1520 180.0

126 10.5

25.3 32.0

19.8 34.2

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS continued

Credit Facilities

As of December 31 2009 and 2010 we had the following outstanding loans

Loan Date

November 19 2010

November 12 2010

Ccfober 29 2010

Cctober 12 2010

September 21 2010

June 07 2010

April 01 2010

April 01 2010

March 2010

March 16 2009

July 2008

April 24 2008

July 2007

December 19 2006

Cctober 30 2006

Cctober 27 2006

Ccfober 25 2006

August 30 2005

28 25.4

48 59.7

13.8 16.0

184 24.0

32 29.7

401.1 624.7
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The above dates show the later of the date of the facil

ity the date of the most receot renewal or the date the

loan was assumed by the Company

The following is summary of terms including operat

ing and tinancial restriotions of our credit facilities

Trade Credit Facility On November 19 2009 our sub

sidiary Aegean Marine Petroleum S.A entered into

an uncommitted trade credit facility which we reter to

as the trade credit facility with an international commer

cial lender The trade credit facility is for up to $100.0

million with sublimit in an amount of $20.0 million tor

short term transit and storage tinancing The trade

credit facility had one year term and was renewd

on its anniversary on the same terms as the original

tacility until the signature of new upon different

borrowing base facility that is currently under negoti

ation The availability of any letters of credit overdrafts

or cash advances under the trade credit
facility is sub

lect to the lenders discretion The facility bears inter

est at rate of the lenders cost of funds plus 2.0 for

overdrafts The facility is guaranteed by us and is

secured by among other things our assigned receiv

ables and fuel oil and gas oil stored or to be stored in

storage facility acceptable to the lender and pledged

in its favor Under the trade credit facility the maximum

credit terms given to any individual counterparty will

be 45 days from the delivery of the products the

inventories will only be financed up to 30 days from

the date such inventories are delivered to the storage

facility and the product to be stored and in transit will

be financed up to 10 calendar days from the date of

the bill of lading The trade credit facility contains cov

enants requiring among other things that

Aegean Marine Petroleum S.A maintain minimum

total net equity of at least $80.0 million and cash

collateral of $5 million

we maintain our listing on the New York Stock

Exchange

our minimum net equity will not be less than $180.0

million and

our minimum current ratio will be 1.15 with mini

mum working capital need of $50.0 million

As of December 31 2009 and 2010 we had $0 and

$bu.1 million outstanding under this facility

Senicr Secured Revolving Credit Facility On September

17 2009 we entered into an annually renewable senior

secured revolving credit facility with local bank for

an amount of $50.0 million The senior secured revolv

ing credit facility is secured by among other things

our receivables and corporate guarantee and bears

interest at LIBOR plus 2.50c The senior secured

revolving credit facility contains certain covenants and

undertakings that require among other things that

we maintain our listing on the New York Stock

Exchange

thw nwf wquity bas is nnt lecn thin $175.0 millinn

our interest coverage ratio is not less than 1.31

our total liabilities to total assets does not exceed

rca
0.3

we maintain additional free liquidity of $25 million

at the end of each calendar month and

we maintain an average minimum daily free liquidity

of $10.0 million

On November 12 2010 this facility was committed by

the bank until September 30 2011 with the terms

accepted by us on February 09 2011 On this date

we amended the renewed facility to bear interest at

LIBOR plus 3.50% require the monthly average con

solidated liquid funds to exceed $30000 and require

the consolidated leverage ratio under the corporate

guarantee to be higher than 0.75c

As of December 31 2009 and 2010 we had $50.0

and $0 million outstanding under this facility

Revolving Credit Facilities On April 2010 in con

nection with the acquisition of the Verbe5e Bunkering

Business we have assumed two credit facilities with

Belgian banks in aggregate amounts of up to $45.0

million and $45.0 million plus Euro 0.5 million respec

tively The latter was renewed on April 27 2010 The

facilities bore interest at rates of 90000 and B.30

respectively

In October 2010 both credit lines of the facilities were

increased to $55.0 million and $70.0 million plus

Euro 0.5 million respectively The facilities are secured

by the Company and drawdowns on the facilities are

limited to maximum of 9Oo of the accounts receiv

able accepted by the lenders and credit insured

equally shared between the lenders The $55.0 million

facility bears interest at EURIBOR plus 2.00c for

drawdowns in Euros and rate of 9.00c for other

credit advances The $70 million and Euro 0.5 million

facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.00c for draw

downs in U.S dollars and LIBOR plus 2.50c for other

credit advances

As of December 31 2010 the Company had an out

standing balance under the facilities of $40 million

and $52.2 million of which 13000 respectively

Receivables Credit and Assignment Agreement On

September 21 2010 our subsidiary Aegean Marine

Petroleum S.A entered intb receivables credit and

assignment agreement with an international bank for an

amount up to $50 million and one year term The facility

is guaranteed by us and bears interest at LIBOR plus

2.00c The senior secured revolving credit facility

contains covenants requiring among other things that
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS continued

we maintain minimum current ratio of 1.15 As of

December 31 2010 the Company had an outstanding

balance of $50 million under the senior secured

revolving credit facility

Revolving Credit Facility On June 2010 our subsid

iary the Aegean Marine Petroleum S.A entered into

an uncommitted trade credit facility with an interna

tional commercial lender for an amount up to $100 mil

lion and one year term The availability of any letters

of credit overdrafts or cash advances under the

revolving credit tacility is subject to the lenders discre

tion The credit facility
bears interest at rate of the

lenders cost of funds plus 2.0% for overdrafts The

credit facility
is guaranteed by us and is secured by

among other things assignment of and pledge ot

receivables and fuel oil and gas oil stored or to be

stored in storage facility acceptable to the lender

and our guarantee The
tacility

contains certain cove

nants and undertakings that require among other

things that

we maintain minimum working capital of $75 million

we maintain minimum equity of $200.0 million and

we maintain minimum current ratio of 115

The availability of any letters of credit overdrafts or

cash advances under the credit facility is subject to

the lenders discretion As of December 31 2010 we

had an outstanding balance of $3.0 million under the

credit facility

Loan Facility With Respect to Company Acquisition

On April 2010 in connection with our acquisition

of the Verbeke Bunkering Business we assumed

loan agreement with Belgian Bank in an aggregate

amount nf Eurn 4.n millinn Th
facility

bars interest at

EURIBOA plus 2.5c As of December 31 2010 the

outstanding balance under this facility was $3.5 million

or Euro 2.6 million

Loan Facility With Respect to One Newbuilding On

April 2010 in connection with our acquisition of the

Verbeke Bunkering Business we assumed loan

agreement with Belgian bank in an aggregate

amount of Euro 3.7 million to finance the construction

of our double hull bunkering vessel Texas The facility

bears interest at rate of 4.36c The facility is renew

able every five years and was last renewed on April

2009 As of December 31 2010 the outstanding bal

ance under this loan facility was $2.8 million or Euro

21 million

Revolving Overdratt Credit Facility On March 11 2008

we entered into one-year annually renewable revolv

ing overdraft facility with local bank in an amount

of $20.0 million On March 2010 the facility was

renewed until March 15 2011 and amended to increase

the amount to $30.0 million adding to the existing

securities the vessels Aegean Ace Aegean Star and

Aegean Champion The renewed facility bears interest

at LIBOR plus 2.50c for the first $10.0 million bor

rowed and LIBOR plus 3.50c for additional amounts

outstanding The facility is secured by among other

things first priority mortgage over the vessels Vera

Sara Hope Aegean Ace Aegean Star and Aegean

Champion and requires us to maintain minimum

security value of 125c Furthermore the credit facility

contains financial covenants requiring us among
other things to ensure that

our market adjusted consolidated book net worth

shall not be less than $175.0 million

our consolidated leverage ratio shall not exceed

0.651 and

we maintain tree liquidity of no less than $25.0

million

As of December 31 2009 and December 31 2010 we

had $0 and $1.6 million outstanding under this facility

On March 30 2011 the facility was amended to

reduce the amount of the facility to $10.0 million The

dnlnndnd fduility is bwcurnd by aniung uthur things

first priority mortgage over each of the vessels

Aegean Ace Aegean Champion and Aegean Sara

The amended
facility

is guaranteed by us bears inter

est at LI BOA plus 5.5% and requires us to maintain

minimum security value of 125%

Senior Secured Credit Facility On March 16 2009 with

effect as of February 2009 we renewed for period

of two years until January 30 2011 and amended cer

tam terms of the September 30 2008 senior secured

credit facility We rfer tn the rnwd and amended

facility as our senior secured credit facility Our senior

secured credit facility is in an uncommitted amount of

up to $1.0 billion and may be used for working capital

and general corporate purposes Our senior secured

credit facility had committed amount of up to

$300.0 million which decreased to $250.0 million on

March 31 2009 consisting of guarantee and/or let

ter of credit line in an amount of up to $197.5 million

and cash advance limit in an amount of up to

$250.0 million which decreased to $147.5 million and

$208 rnilliuri un March 31 2009 respeutivaly Our

senior secured credit facility bears interest at rate of

LIBOR plus margin of 250c while documentary

and standby letters of credit are subject to commis

sions of 0.75% and 1.50o respectively

Our senior secured credit
facility is secured by among

other things

first priority mortgage on eleven of our double hull

bunkering tankers and our three floating storage

facilities or our mortgaged vessels

26 Aegean Marine Petroleum Network cio Annuai Report



an assignment of all earnings requisition oompen
sation and insurance policies of our mortgaged

vessels

charge over Aegean Marine Petroleum SA.s

operating account

our corporate guarantee and guarantees of our

vessel owning subsidiaries acting as guarantors

the general assignment of trade receivables by us

and our subsidiaries

floating charge on our inventories and

corporate guarantee of our vessel owning sub

sidiaries acting as supplemental guarantors and

undertakings to provide tirst priority mortgages it

the lenders so request

Our senior secured credit facility contains certain coy

enants requiring us to among other things

maintain our listing at the New York Stock Exchange

ensure that our vessels are managed by Aegean

Bunkering Services Inc and that there is no change

in their management without the lenders consent

obtain and maintain an interest insurance policy

and additional perils pnlliitinn insurance pnlicies tor

10000 of the market value of our vessels

indemnify the lenders against the consequences of

pollution incident

ensure that there is no change of Oompanys or our

and our subsidiaries business

have direct control of and own directly or indirectly

10000 of the capital stock of vessel owning sub

sidiaries acting as guarantors and additional

guarantors

maintain nuninium bwuurity 0f 120% of the uutstdnd

ing facility amount

ensure that Mr Melisanidis controls at least 15% of

our shares

inform the lenders about any actual or proposed

purchases and

provide the lenders with financial statements on

semi-annual and annual basis and such other infor

mation that the lenders may reasonably request

Our senior secured credit facility contains customary

financial covenants requiring us and our subsidiaries

to among other things ensure that

our book net worth shall not be less than $175.0

million

our ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall not

exceed 0.65 to one and

we maintain additional free liquidity of $25.0 million

held with the lender at the end of each month with

average minimum daily free liquidity of $10.0 million

Furthermore our senior secured credit facility requires

us to ensure that our interest coverage ratio is always

higher than 1.3

As of December 31 2009 and December 31 2010 we

had $152.0 million and $180.0 million outstanding

under our senior secured credit facility respectively

Secured Term Loan With Respect to Three Vessels On

July 2008 we entered into secured term loan

facility
with local bank for an amount of $15.0 million

The facility is collateralized by first priority mortgage

over the vessels Aegean Ill Aegean VIII and Aegean

XII and bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.25c The loan

is repayable in 20 equal consecutive quarterly install

ments plus balloon payment of $5.0 million payable

with the last installment

The loan is collateralized by

first priority mortgage over each of the vessels

first priority pledge over the operating account of

each of the three vessel-owning subsidiaries

assignments of earnings insurances and requisi

tion compensation of each of the mortgaged yes

sels and

our corporate guarantee

The loan agreement contains financial covenants

requiring us to among other things ensure that

market value adjusted net worth is not less than

$175.0 million

the minimum liquidity is not less than $25.0 million

and

the ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall not

exceed 0.651

As of December 31 2009 and December 31 2010

the outstanding balance of the loan was $12.6 million

and $10.5 million respectively

Secured Term Loan With Respect to Four Newbuildings

On April 24 2008 four of our vessel owning subsidiar

ies Kassos Navigation S.A Tilos Navigation

Halki Navigation S.A and Symi Navigation S.A as

co borrowers jointly and severally entered into syn

dicated secured term loan with an international bank

for an amount of $38.8 million to partially finance the

construction costs of the vessels OHS-225 OHS-226

OHS 227 and OHS 228 Each of four tranches of $9

million is available in two advances Each tranche is

repayable in 40 equal consecutive quarterly install

ments plus balloon payment of $4.3 million payable

with the last installment The first installment of each

tranche is repayable three month after the date of

drawdown of the respective delivery advance The

loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.15%
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The loan is collateralized by

first priority mortgage over each of the vessels

assignments of earnings insurances and requisi

tion compensation of each of the mortgaged yes

sels and

our corporate guarantee

The loan agreement contains financial covenants

requiring us to among other things ensure that

book ret worth shall not be less than $175.0 million

the ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall not

exceed 0.65 to one

thy current ratio shah raY be less than 1.25 to uric

and

cash and cash equivalents exceed 5000 of all debts

and interest becoming due in the next 12 month

period excluding working capital facilities and

balloons

As of December 31 2009 and December 31 2010
the outstanding balance of the loan was $25.3 million

and $32.0 million respectively

Secored Syndicated Term Loan Facility With Respect

to Five Newbuildings On July 2007 five of our

vessel owning subsidiaries Andros Marine Inc Duos

Marine Inc los Marine Inc Sifnos Marine Inc and

Tinos Marine Inc as co borrowers jointly and sev

erally entered into secured credit facility for an

aggregate amount ot $37.6 million with an interna

tional commercial bank to finance the construction of

five bunkering tankers DN-3800 11 DN 3800 12

DN 3800 13 DN 3800 14 and DN-3800 15 respec

tively On September 12 2008 we amended this loan

facility and increased the loan amojnt to $43.2 million

The amended loan bears interest at the rate of LIBOR

plus 1.000 Under the terms of the agreement the bor

rowers may enter into interest rate swap agreements to

hedge their exposure to interest rate risk

The loan is collateralized by

first priority mortgage over each of the vessels

assignments of earnings insurances and requisi

tion compensation of each of the mortgaged yes

sels and

our corporate guarantee

Our corporate guarantee contains customary financial

covenants requiring us to ensure that

our market value adjusted net worth shall not be

less than $150.0 million

our ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall not

exceed 0.65 to one and

we maintain additional free liquidity of $25.0 million

held with the lender at the end of each month with

average minimum daily free liquidity of $10.0 million

Furthermore we are required to maintain the listing
of

our shares on the New York Stock Exchange

The credit facility contains customary financial restric

tions on the borrowers including restrictions on

the minimum value of the collateral

incurrence of debt and

payment of dividends

The facility as amended is available in five tranches

of $8 million each Each tranche is repayable in 40

consecutive quarterly installments in the amount of

$216000 each The first installment of each tranche

is repayable three mnnths aftr th dat nf drawdown

of the final advance As of December 31 2009

and December 31 2010 the outstanding balance

under this loan was $19.8 million and $34.2 million

respectively

Secured Term Loan Facility With Respect to Five New
buildings On February 10 2006 five of our vessel

owning subsidiaries Milos Maritime Inc Amorgos

Maritime Inc Kimolos Maritime Inc Mykonos

Maritime Inc and Syros Maritime Inc entered into

secured loan facility with an international commercial

bank for an aggregate amount of $33 million to

partially finance the construction costs of five double

hull tankers Milos Amorgos Kimolos Mykonos and

Syros respectively The loan bears interest at LIBOR

plus 1150o plus additional compliance costs The loan

is collateralized by first priority mortgage over each

of the vessels

Upon the lenders demand this facility may be collat

erahized by

second priority mortoaoe over one of our vessels

Aegean Flower

second priority undertaking and assignment to

be executed by Aegean Bunkering Services Inc in

favor of the lender and

corporate guarantee by one of our vessel owning

subsidiaries Pontos Navigation Inc

Our corporate guarantee contains customary financial

covenants requiring us to ensure that

our market value adjusted net worth shall not be

less than $15u million

our ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall not

exceed 65 to one and

we maintain additional free liquidity of $25.0 million

The secured loan imposes certain operating and

financial restrictions on the borrowers including

restrictions on

payment of dividends and the distribution of assets

incurrence of debt
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the change in legal and/or ultimate beneficial own

ership of shares of the five vessel-owning sub

sidiaries borrowing under this facility Fontos

Navigafion Inc and Aegean Bunkering Services

nc

merger and consolidation

fhe acquisition of additional vessels and

changes in the business activities fhat are carried on

The facilify is available in five franches of $6.7 million

each Each tranche is repayable in 48 quarterly install

ments first 47 in the amount of $140000 and the last

in the amount of $100000 The firsf installment of

each tranche is repayable three monfhs after the date

of drawdown of the respective delivery advance

On December 19 2006 this
facility was refinanced by

term loan with identical ferms and conditions with

the same bank under fhe 2006 Senior Secured Oredit

Facility

As of December 31 2009 and December 31 2010 we

had $28.2 million and $25 million outsfanding under

this facility respectively

Scurd Syndkatd Trn7 Ludn Fdility With RspwGt

to Seven Newbuildings On October 30 2006 seven

of our vessel-owning subsidiaries Kerkyra Marine

S.A Ithaki Marine S.A Oephallonia Marine

Faxoi Marine Zakynthos Marine S.A Lefkas

Marine and Kythira Marine S.A as co borrowers

jointly and severally entered into syndicated secured

credit facility for an aggregate amount of $64.8 million

with an infernational commercial bank fo finance the

construction of seven double hull oil tankers Kerkyra

lthaki Kefalonia Faxoi Zakynthos Lefkas and Kythira

respectively The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus

1.1500 before delivery of each vessel and af LIBOR

plus 1.05c after such vessels delivery Under the

terms of the agreement the borrowers may enfer into

interest rate swap agreements to hedge their exposure

to interest rate risk

The loan is collateralized by

first priority mortgage over each of the vessels in

favor of the lenders

corporate guarantee by us and Aegean

Ship holdings Inc as the holding company of the

vessel owning subsidiaries and

managers undertaking from Aegean Bunkering

Services Inc as the management company of the

vessels

Our corporate guarantee contains customary financial

covenants requiring us to ensure that

the book net worth shall not be less than $100

million

the current ratio shall not be less than 25-to one

our ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall not

exceed 65 one and

our cash and cash equivalents exceed 50c of

all debts and interest becoming due in the next

12 month period excluding working capital facili

ties and balloons

The secured loan imposes certain operating and

financial restrictions on the borrowers including

restrictions on

the payment of dividends and the distribution of

assets

the incurrence of debt

mergers and consolidations

changes in the business activities that are carried

on and

The facility is available in seven tranches of $9.2 mu

lion each Each tranche is repayable in 40 quarterly

installments in the amount of $125000 each plus

balloon payment of $4 million payable together

with the last installment The first installment of each

trannhe is repoyshle three months after the date nf

drawdown of the respective delivery advance As of

December 31 2009 and December 31 2010 the bal

ance on the loan was $48.9 million and $59 million

respectively

Secured Term Loan Facility With Respect to Two

Newbuildings On October 27 2006 two of our vessel

owning subsidiaries Tasman Seaways Inc and Santon

Limited as co-borrowers jointly and severally entered

into loan agreement with an international commercial

bank for term loan facility
in an aggregate amount of

$17.6 million to partially finance the construction costs

of two double hull tankers Kalymnos and Leros

respectively The facility bears interest at LIBOR plus

1150o on 70c of the principal amount and at LIBOR

plus 25c on 30% of the principal amount

The loan is collateralized by

first priority or first preferred ship mortgage over

each of the vessels in favor of the lenders

our corporate guarantee and

managers undertaking truiri Aegean Bunkering

Services mc as the management company of the

vessels

The secured loan imposes certain operating and

financial restrictions on the borrowers including

restrictions on

the payment of dividends and the distribution of

assets

the incurrence of debt
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS continued

mergers and consolidations

changes in the business activities that are carried

un arid

The facility is available in two tranches of $8.8 million

each Each tranche is repayable in 40 consecutive

quarterly installments in the amount of $154000 each

plus balloon payment of $2.6 million payable

together with the last installment The first installment

of each tranche is repayable three months after the

date of delivery of the respective vessel As of

December 31 2009 and December 31 2010 the bal

ance on the loan was $13.8 million and $16.0 million

respectively

Secured Term Loan Facility With Respect to Three New
buildings On October 25 2006 three of our vessel

owning subsidiaries Eton Marine Ltd Benmore Services

S.A and Ingram Enterprises Co as co borrowers

jointly and severally entered into syndicated secured

credit facility for an aggregate amount of $26.3 million

to partially finance the construction costs of three

double hull tankers Patmos Nisyros and Karpathos

respectively This facility bears interest at LIBOR plus

1.30% before delivery of each vessel and at LIBOR

plus 1.1875% after such vessels delivery

The loan is collateralized by

first priority or first preferred ship mortgage over

each of the vessels in favor of the lenders

corporate guarantee by us and Aegean

Shipholdings mc as the holding company of the

vessel-owning subsidiaries

managers undertaking from Aegean Bunkering

Services mc as the management company of the

vessels and

personal guarantee by personal guarantor to be

agreed upon by the lenders

Our corporate guarantee contains customary financial

covenants requiring us to ensure that

the book net worth shall not be less than $100.0

million

our ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall not

exceed 0.65-to one and

the current ratio shall not be less than 1.251

The credit facility imposes certain operating and financial

restrictions on the borrowers including restrictions on

the payment of dividends and the distribution of

assets

the incurrence ot debt

mergers and consolidations

changes in the business activities that are carried

on and

The facility is available in three tranches of $8.8 million

each Each tranche is repayable in 40 quarterly install

ments in the amniint nf $125000 each pius balloon

payment of $3.8 million payable together with the last

installment The first installment of each tranche is

repayable three months after the date of drawdown of

the respective delivery advance As of December 31

2009 and December 31 2010 the balance on the

loan was $18.4 million and $24.0 million respectively

Secured Syndicated Term Loan Facility With Respect

to Five Newbuildings On August 30 2005 as

amended five of our vessel-owning subsidiaries

Kithnos Maritime Inc Naxos Maritime Inc Paros

Maritime Inc Santorini Maritime Inc and Serifos

Maritime Inc as co borrowers jointly and severally

entered into syndicated secured credit facility for

an aggregate amount of $35.5 million with an inter

national commercial bank to finance the construction

of five bunkering tankers Kithnos Naxos Faros

Santorini and Serifos respectively The loan bears

interest at LIBOR plus 40c during each vessels

pre delivery period and at LIBOR plus 1.30% during

each vessels post delivery period Under the terms of

the agreement the borrowers may enter intn interest

rate swap agreements to hedge their exposure to

interest rate risk

The loan is collateralized by

first priority mortgage over each of the vessels

assignments of earnings insurances and requisi

tion compensation of each of the mortgaged yes

sels and

corporate guarantees of Aegean Shipholdings Inc

and Aegean Bunkering Services Inc and our cor

porate guarantee

Our corporate guarantee contains customary financial

covenants requiring us to ensure that

our book net worth shall not be less than $100.0

million

our ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall not

exceed 0.65 to-one

our ratio of current assets to current liabilities shall

not be less than 1.25-to one and

our cash and cash equivalents exceed 5000 of the

debt service being due in the succeeding annual

period

The credit facility contains customary financial restric

tions on the borrowers including restrictions on

the minimum value of the collatergi

incurrence of debt and

payment of dividends
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The facility is available in five tranches cf $7.1 million

each Each tranche is repayable in 40 quarterly install

ments first 30 in the amount of $120000 and the

remaining ten in the amount of $110000 plus bal

loon payment at the end of the term in the amount of

$2.4 million As of December 31 2009 and December

31 2010 the balance on the loan was $32.1 million

and $29 million respectively

Liquidity and Uses of Cash

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31 2009

and 2010 amounted to $54.8 million and $86.5 million

respectively The table below illustrates our working

capital and working capital excluding cash and debt

as of December 31 2009 and 2010 Working capital is

defined as current assets less current liabilities

The marine fuel supply industry is capital intensive

The timing and levels of operational cash flows are

important aspects of our business Our periodic cash

flows from operations are mainly dependent on our

periodic working capital excluding cash and debt

Accordingly we use working capital excluding cash

and debt to monitor changes in our operational work

ing capital accounts such as trade receivables inven

tories and trade payables and to assess the current

strength and to predict the future state of our cash

flows from operations Our periodic working capital

excluding cash and debt is partly driven by our sales

volume growth rates for the relevant periods As

result the higher the sales volume growth rates are

the larger the working capital investment needed to

purchase and sell the ncreased quantities of fuel

larger working capital investment decreases our oper

ational cash flows for the relevant periods Furthermore

significant period-on period movement in the avwrage

outstanding days of our trade receivables inventories

and trade payables considerably impacts our periodic

working capital excluding cash and debt positions

and our operational cash flows Finally significant

fluctuations in marine fuel prices materially affect our

periodic working capital excluding cash and debt

period on-period increase in marine fuel prices

increases the level of working capital investment

needed to purchase the same quantity of marine fuel

Accordingly we would have to increase our working

capital investment at multiple of the increase in

marine fuel prices in order to increase our sales

volumes

As ot December 31

2009 2010

in thousands of

dollars

218488 212821

221794 402762

During the year ended December 31 2010 our work

ing capital excluding cash restricted cash and debt

increased to $402.8 million as compared to $221.8

million as of December 31 2009 However our work

ing capital defined as current assets minus current

liabilities position as of December 31 2010 decreased

slightly to $212.8 million from $218.5 million year

ago The increase of our working capital excluding

cash restricted cash and debt was primarily attribut

able to the classification to long-term debt of our com

mitted amount under the senior secured credit facility

that was renewed after December 31 2010 and before

the filing of the Companys Form 20

We primarily use our cash to fund marine petroleum

product purchases for resale to our customers Except

for transactions with our related company Aegean Oil

in which we usually have been extended unsecured

trade credit we obtain secured trade credit from our

suppliers against standby letter of credit In certain

cases we purchase quality marine petroleum prod

ucts from certain suppliers at discounted prices with

cash on or near delivery Our ability to fund mahne

petroleum product purchases obtain trade credit from

our suppliers and provide standby letters of credit is

critical to the success of our business Increases in oil

prices negatively impact our liquidity by increasing the

amount of cash needed to fund marine petroleum

product purchases as well as reducing the volume of

marine petroleum products which can be purchased

on secured credit basis from our suppliers

We also use our cash to fund the acquisition or con

struction costs of vessels as well as to fund the main

tenance cost of these vessels The following table

illustrates the cash paid for the acquisition and con

struction of vessels and the cash paid for drydocking

of our vessels for the years ended December 31

2008 2009 and 2010

Payments tor net vessel

acquisitions

Payments tor vessel

construction

Payments tor drydocking

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

in thousands of dollars

Payments for vessel acquisitions will continue in the

coming years due to our existing commitments on our

newbuilding contracts As of December 31 2010 two

of the six bunkering tankers on order have total

construction cost of $10.7million each three have

total construction cost of $12 milion each and the

remaining has construction cost of $5 million

These costs include newbuilding contracts with the

shipyards as well as supervision contracts The con

struction costs of both the bunkering tankers and the

21665 25420 26576

116990 84444 59568

6890 5504 10073

Working capital

Working capital excluding

cash and debt
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS continued

specialty tanker are payable in milestones over the

duration of the construction of these vessels The

remaining obligations under the construction and

supervision contracts which are payable within 2011

are $13.9 million

Currently we intend to purchase only secondhand

double hull bunkering tankers which are generally

more costly than secondhand single hull bunkering

tankers Payments tor drydocking are also expected to

increase mainly due to the increased number of yes

sels in our fleet

It is our intention to fund the remaining capital commit

ments on our newbuilding contracts using cash on

hand and existing long term bank debt We intend to

fund our growth strategy which may include further

acquisitions of additional vessels or investments in

other energy related projects using either cash on

hand and cash flow from operations or new long term

bank debt

We anticipate that assuming market conditions are

consistent with our historical experience cash on

hand internally generated cash flow and borrowings

under our uredit fauilities will be suffir.ier it tu fur id uur

business including our working capital requirements

While we do not currently intend to do so in the future

we may consider raising funds through additional

equity or debt offerings depending on our future busi

ness plans

Our beliefs intentions plans and expectations con

cerning liquidity and our ability to obtain financing are

based on currently available information To the extent

this information proves to be inaccurate or if circum

ntancws change futur availability of trade credit or

other sources of financing may be reduced and our

liquidity would be adversely affected Factors that

may affect the availability of trade credit or other

financing include our performance the state of world

wide credit markets and our levels ot outstanding

debt In addition we may decide to raise additional

funds to respond to competitive pressures or changes

in market conditions to fund future growth or to

acquire vessels We cannot guarantee that financing

will be available when needed or desired or on terms

favurable tu us

CASH FLOW

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $64.6 million

for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared

to net cash used in operating activities of $61.4 million

for 2009 This increase was primarily attributable to an

increase in working capital excluding cash and debt

which is directly related tu the tin ring uf cullectiunb

from customers and payment of suppliers especially

subsequent to the acquisition of the Verbeke Bunkering

Business in April 2010 Our working capital excluding

cash and debt increased by $181.0 million to sur

pius of $402.8 million as of December 31 2010 com

pared to surplus of $221.8 million as of December

31 2009

Net cash used in operating activities was $61.4 million

for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared

tn net cash prnvidwd by nprating activitis of $136.7

million for 2008 This decrease was primarily attrib

utable to an increase in working capital as result of

the increase in the price of marine petroleum products

during the last quarter of 2009 Working capital

excluding cash and debt increased by $121.6 million

to surplus of $221.8 million as of December 31 2009

compared to surplus of $100.2 million as of

December 31 2008

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $169.0 million

for the year ended December 31 2010 During the

period we paid $63.7 for corporate acquisitions in

Belgium and Canary Islands $59.6 million as mile

stone payments under our newbuilding and engineer

ing contracts $26.6 million to acquire the secondhand

storage facilities Aeolos and Mediterranean and

$11.6 for the construction our storage facility in

Fujairah Furthermore we paid $10.5 for other fixed

assets mainly to purchase land and building in

Jamaica while we received net cash consideration of

$2.9 million for the sale of our tankers Aegean Pride

and Aegean Force

Net cash used in investing activities was $75.2 million

for the year ended December 31 2009 During the

period we paid $84.4 million as milestone payments

under our newbuilding and engineering contracts and

we paid $25.4 million mainly to acquire the second

hand vessels Aegean Star Aegean Champion and

Aegean Ace Furthermore we received net cash con

sideration of $34 million for the sale of our specialty

tankers and our vessel Aegean IX

Net cash used in investing activities was $135 million

for the year ended December 31 2008 During the

period we paid $117.0 million as milestone payments

under our newbuilding and engineering contracts and

we paid $21.7 million mainly to acquire the second

hand vessels Aegean Ill Aegean VIII Aegean XII and
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Aegean Ace Furthermore we paid net cash consid

erafion of $9.1 million for our acquisitions of ICS

PVroleum Ltd During 2nn8 nur restricted cash bal

ances decreased by $12.6 million which increased our

cash flows by the same amount

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing acfivifies was $265

million for fhe year ended December 31 2010 mainly

due to addifional drawdowns of $176.2 million under

our ferm loan facilities and $95.1 under our shorf ferm

credif facilities to finance porfion of fhe construction

cosfs of our new vessels and the marine petroleum

purchases for resale to our cusfomers Fart of this

increase in funding was offset by repaymenfs of long

term debt of $116.8 million The net proceeds from fhe

issuance of common stock amounted to $139 million

while the cash paid to repurchase common stock was

$24 million Furthermore during the year ended

December 31 2010 we paid for capital lease and

financing costs $1 million while we declared and

paid dividends of $1 million to our shareholders

Net cash provided by financing activities was $144.5

million tor the year ended December 31 2009 mainly

due to additional drawdowns of $133 million under

our term loan facilities and our senior secured credit

facility to finance portion of the construction costs of

our new vessels and the marine petroleum purchases

for resale to our customers and due to an increase in

short term borrowings under our credit facilities for the

same purposes Fart of this increase in funding was

offset by repayments of long term debt of $36.2 mil

lion Furthermore during the year ended December

31 2009 we paid for financing costs $1 million and

declared and paid dividends of $1.7 million to our

shareholders

Net cash provided by financing activities was $43.9

million for the year ended December 31 2008 mainly

due to additional drawdowns of $93 million under

our term loan facilities to finance portion of the con

struction costs of our new vessels Part of this increase

in funding was offset by repayments of long term debt

of $4.1 million and $43.0 million in payments to reduce

short-term borrowings Furthermore during the year

ended December 31 2008 we declared and paid

dividends of $1.7 million to our shareholders

RESEARCH AND DEVELCPMENT PATENTS AND

LICENSES ETC

Nnt applicable

TREND INFCRMATION

During the year ended December 31 2010 our sales

volume of marine fuel increased by 66.5c as com

pared to the prior year which was mainly due to addi

tional sales of marine fuel in the United Arab Emirates

Singapore and Morocco and due to sales in our new

markets ARA region and Las Palmas Canary Islands

We have also expanded our bunkering fleet by taking

delivery of nine double hull bunkering tanker new

buildings and by acquiring two secondhand oouble

hull tankers to use as storage facilities We expect our

growth to continue in 2011 as we expand our business

and marine fuel delivery capabilities in existing mar

kefs and enter new markets We commenced opera

tions in the ARA region and Las Palmas in the second

and third quarter of 2010 respectively and we will

expand our fleet by at least five new double hull bun

kering tankers for which we have firm orders during

the next year

In addition to our bunkering operations we market

and distribute marine lubricants under the Alfa Marine

Lubricants brand Further to the cooperation with Gulf

Cii marine within the Sealub Alliance Network we

proceeded in building up our own production and dis

tributing network in several major worldwide ports

Within 2011 we will continue expanding our branded

supply and we expect the sales volumes to gradually

increase

Cur success in attracting business has been due in

part to our willinnness to extend trade credit on an

unsecured basis to our customers after suitable credit

analysis of them The recent adverse changes in world

credit markets may adversely affect our ability to do

business with customers whose creditworthiness may
no longer meet our criteria Volatility in the price of

marine fuel and lubricants may also affect our working

capital requirements

CFF EALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
We do not have any off balance sheet arrangements
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS continued

TABULAR DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Total 283 566 290 404 1545.3

Our long term bank debt outstanding as ot December 31 25i0 bear variable interest at margin over LIBOR The calcu ation ot variable rate

interest payments based or an actua weighted average rate ot 24c tor the year ended December 31 201P adlusted upward by ig

basis nts tor each year thereafter

In the rormal cour of business we have entered into long term contracts with reputable uppliers such as government refineries or mstor

oil produccrs The contractual commitments set forth ir the above table nclude the minimum purchase repuirements ir our oontract with

Aegeai Oil The ms imum purchase rcquirements prov dad for in our contract with Aegean havc been calculated by mu tiplying the

minimur monthly volumes of marine fuel pacified in the contract by an indicative market price ba ad on puoted PLATTS prices as of

December 31 2glg

SAFE HARBOR

Fnrward-lnnking infnrmatinn dicruoswd in this ltm

includes assumptions expectations projections

intentions and beliefs about future events These state

ments are intended as forward looking statements

We caution that assumptions expectations projections

Intentions and beliefs about future events may and

nftwn dn vary frnm actual rult and th ditfwrwncwe

can be material Flease see the section entitled

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward Looking

Statements this report

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of December 31 2010

Within One to

One Year Three Years

Long term bank debt excluding interest

Capital lease

Operating lease commitments

Interest on long term bank debt

Minimum purchase commitments

Newbuilding contracts bunkering tankers

Three to More than

Five Years Five Years Total

in mrt/rons of dotlars

749 1698 34.3

1.0 2.3 04

74 263 26.2

89 144 84

177.0 354 221.3

139

1388 4178

3.7

254.4 3143

11.5 43.2

752

139
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Price Risk

Our price risk has been minimal because we have

cienerally purchased inventory fcr which we have

already had binding sales ccntract in place We

generally do net fix future prices for delivery of fuel in

excess of one week and our suppliers generally use

average PLAITS pricing in their calculation of cost

prices to us Accordingly our exposure to price risk

has covered period of only few days In Gibraltar

West Africa the United Kingdom and the UAE we

operafe storage facilities and we currently import and

store cargos of marine fuel prior to resale to custom

ers Accordingly in Gibraltar West Africa the United

Kingdom the UAE and Las Palmas we purchased fuel

before entering into binding sales contract with

customer We believe thaf our exposure to price risk in

these locations covers period of one to two weeks

In view of our minimal price risk we have not entered

into derivative contracts swaps or futures to mitigate

the risk of market price fluctuations in marine fuel Our

policy is to not use fuel related derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes

In the future we may enter info long term fixed price

sales commitments which fix the prices nf future fuel

sales Furthermore we may use cargo storage in our

other service centers or we might import larger cargos

of fuel for storage which would increase our oil price

risk Furthermore in the future we might execute

cargo trading transactions to arbitrage the price of

marine fuel which method would increase our oil price

risk Finally we may enter into derivative contracts in

the forms of swaps or futures in order to mitigate the

risk of market price fluctuations in marine fuel

Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to market risks relating to changes in

interest rates as we have significant amounts of float

ing rate long term debt and short term borrowings out

standing During the year ended December 31 2010

we paid interest on this debt based on LIBOR plus an

average spread of 1.66% on our bank loans one

percent increase in LIBOR would have increased our

interest expense for the year ended December 31

2010 from $12.7 million to $17.2 million We expect to

repay these borrowings on periodic basis using

cash flows from operations

At any time and from time to time we may enter into

derivative contracts including interest rate swaps to

hedge portion of our exposure in our floating rate

long term and short term debt

Exchange Rate Risk

We have conducted the vast majority of our business

transactions in U.S dollars We have purchased

marine petroleum products in the international oil and

gas markets and our vessels have operated in inter

national shipping markets both these international

markets transact business primarily in U.S dollars

Accordingly our total revenues have been fully

denominated in U.S dollars and our cost of marine

petroleum products which for the year ended

December 31 2010 comprised approximately 96c of

our total operating expenses have been denominated

in dollars Our balance sheet is mainly comprised

of dollar denominated assets including trade receiv

ables inventories and the cost of vessels and liabili

ties including trade payables short term borrowings

and long term loans Our foreign exchange losses in

recent periods have mainly arisen from the translation

of assets and liabilities of our service centers that are

denominated in local currency Accordingly the

impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on our con

solidated statements of income has been minimal

Should we enter certain markets where payments and

receipts are denominated in local currency or should

either the international oil and gas markets or the

international shipping markets change their base

currency from the U.S dollar to another international

currency such as the Euro the impact on our dollar

denominated consolidated statements of income may
be significant

Due to the minimal historic impact of foreign exchange

fluctuations on us it is our policy to not enter into

hedging arrangements in respect of our foreign cur

rency exposures

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLQSURES ABQUT MARKET RISK
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIO AOCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Aegean Marine Petroleum Network Inc

Majuru Republic of the Marshall Islands

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal

ance sheets of Aegean Marine Petroleum Network

Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of December

31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated

statements of income stockholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 These tinancial statements are

the responsibility of the Companys management Cur

responsibility is to express an opinion on these finan

r.ial tatmnt bad ur audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the stand

ards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the tinancial statements

are tree of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

An audit also includes assessing the accounting prin

ciples used and significant estimates made by man

agement as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits pro

vide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements

present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Aegean Marine Petroleum Network Inc

and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and 2009
and the results of their operations and their cash flows

for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

We have also audited in accordance with the stand

ards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the Companys internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2010
based on the criteria established in Internal Contro/

/ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis

sion and our report dated April 2011 expressed an

unqualified opinion on the Companys internal control

over financial reporting

/5/ Deloitte

Hadjipavlou Sofianos Cambanis S.A

Athens Greece

April 2011
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31 2009 and 2010

Expressed in thousands cf dollars except for share and per share data

December 31

2009 2010

ASSET5
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables net ot allowance for doubtful accounts of $1751 and $1293
as of December 31 2009 and 2010 respectively

Due from related companies Note
Inventories NoteS
Prepayments and other current assets Note
Deferred tax asset Note 22
Restricted cash Note

54841

275630
8454

140115

24476
170

5000

86499

439682
20510

155018

26150

5340

Total current assets 508686 733199

FIXFD ASS FT
Advances for vessels under construction and acquisitions Note 136494 77858

Advances for other fixed assets under construction Note 11630

Vessels cost Note

Vessels accumulated depreciation Note

321915

41993
479489
54168

Vessels net book value 279922 425321

Cther fixed assets net Note 10 1647 13511

Total fixed assets 418063 528320

CTHER NCN CURRENT ASSETS
Deterred charges net Note 11

Intangible assets Note 12
Goodwill Note

Deferred tax asset Note 22
Cther non-current assets

15376

7095
17431

598

96

18065
19984
37946
2218

103

Total non current assets 40596 78316

Total assets $967345 $1339835

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHCLDERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short term borrowings Note 13
Current portion of long term debt Note 14
Trade payables to third parties

Trade payables to related companies Note
Qther payables to related companies Note
Accrued and other current liabilities

50000

13147

182438

24844
585

19184

206884
74896

192850

18472

572

26704

Total current liabilities 290198 520378

QTHER NQN CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt net of current portion Note 14

Deferred tax liability Note 22
Qther non-current liabilities

337890

4200

342918
2669
3507

Total non-current liabilities 342090 349094

CQMMITMENTS AND CQNTINGENCIES Note 15
STQCKHQLDERS EQUITY
Preferred stock $0.01 par value 25000000 shares authorized none issued

Common stock $0.01 par value 100000000 shares authorized at December 31
2009 and 2010 43009303 and 47709420 shares issued and outstanding at

December 31 2009 and 2010 respectively Note 20
Treasury stock $0.01 par value and 1000000 shares repurchased at

December 31 2009 and December 31 2010 respectively Note 20
Additional paid in capital Note 20
Retained earnings

430

194112

140515

477

24680
337196
157370

Total stockholoers equity 335057 470363

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $967345 $1339835

Tho arrnmpanying nes ar an intgraI part of thee consolidatd tinancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010

Expressed in thousands of US dollars except for share and per share data

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

REVENUES

Sales of marine petroleum products third parties

Sales of marine petroleum products related companies Note

Voyage revenues

Other revenues

$2757181

10886

1379

8526

$2436340

13105

9044

12471

$4909128

45471

7261

9775

Total revenues 2777972 2470960 4971635

EXPENSES

Cost of marine petroleum products sold exclusive of items shown

separately below third parties

Cost ot marine petroleum products sold exclusive of items shown

separately below related companies Note

Salaries wages and related costs

Depreciation Notes and 10
Amortization ot drydocking costs Note 11

Amortization of finite lived intangibles Note 12

Oain/Ioss on sale of vessels net Note

Other operating expenses Note 16

2242911

351532

41666

12604

3640

313

73157

1999193

267767

47708

16792

4574

312

4094
79492

4420103

303620

67378

21092

5805

1001

1540

109270

Total expenses 2725823 2411744 4929809

Operating income 52149 59216 41826

OTHER INCOME/EXPENSE
Interest and finance costs Notes 11 13 14 and 17
Interest income

Foreign exchange gains losses net

12377
501

1521

10355

10255
46

329

10538

17351
31

3612

20932

Income before income taxes

Income taxes Note 22

41794

1879
48678

153
20894

2161

Net income 39915 48525 18733

Basic earnings per common share 0.94 1.13 0.40

Diluted earnings per conittiuti share 094 1.13 0.40

Weighted average number of shares basic 42497450 42579187 46295973

Weighted average number of shares diluted 42625801 42644448 46445499

The accompanying notes are an integral part ot these consclidated tinancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EOUITY
For the Years Ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010

Expressed in thousands of U.S dollars except for share and per share data

Common Stock Treasury Stock
Add tional

ot Par of Far Paid-in Retained

Shares Value Shares Value Capital Earnings

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income Total

BALANCE

December 31 2007 42461428 $425 $187795 55505 $243725

Net income 39915 39915

Dividends declared and

paid $004 per share 1711 1711
Share based compensa

tion Note 19 82180 2863 2863

Foreign currency transla

tion adiustment 211 211

BALANCE

December31 2008 42543608 $425 $190658 93709 211 $285003

Net income 48525 48525

Dividends declared and

paid $0.04 per share 1719 1719
Share based compensa

tion Note 19 465695 3454 3459

Foreign currency trans

tion adjustment 211 211

BALANCe

December31 2009 43009303 $430 $194112 $140515 $335057

Net income 18733 18733

Dividends declared and

paid $0.04 per share 1.878 1878
Issuance ot common stock

Note 20 4491900 45 139002 139047

Share based compensa

tion Note 19 208217 4082 4084

Repurchases of common

ntnrk Nnt 10000 10 24670 246R0

BALANCE
December 31 2010 47709420 $477 1000000 $10 $312526 $157370 $470363

The accompanying notes are an integral part ot these consohdated tinancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010

Expressed in thousands of U.S dollars

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

39915 48525 18733

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

used in operating activities

Depreciation

Release of provision for doubtful accounts

Share based compensation

Amortization

Frovision for ncome taxes

Gain on sale of vessel

Cther non cash charges

Decrease increase in

Trade receivables

Due from related companies

Inventories

Frepayments and other current assets

Decrease increase in

Trade payables

Cther payables to related companies

Accrued and other current liabilities

Increase decrease in other non current assets

Increase other non current liabilities

Payments for drydocking

16792

428

3458

5562
153

4094

21092

458
4084

7667

589
1540

384

12604

280
2863

4783

1879

136

87228

1185

44550

1187

35680
27

14314
93

97

6890

136737Net cash provided by used in operating activities

144792
5953

84785
10915

114622

398

5345

670
77

5504

61353

70342
12056
8351

209

19341
13

2782

112

10073

64626

Cash flows from investing activities

Advances for vessels under construction

Advances for vessel acquisitions

Advances for other fixed assets under construction

Corporate acquisitions net of cash acquired

Net proceeds from sale of vessels

Purchase of other fixed assets

Decrease in restricted cash

Increase in restricted cash

116990
21665

9065

549
14234

1632

84444
25420

34499

335
5470

5000

59568
26576
11630
63652

2920

10499

Net cash used in investing activities 135667 75230 169003

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long term debt

Repayment of long term debt

Repayment of capital lease obligation

Net change in short-term borrowings

Repurchases of common stock

Financing costs paid

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock

Issuance of common stock cost

Dividends paid

93636

4120

43000

915

1711

133648

36232

50000

1200

1719

176172

116841
1225
95103

24680
411

147109

8062
1878

Net cash provided by financing activities 43890 144497 265287

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

44960

1967

7914

46927

31658

54841

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 46927 54841 86499

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLCW INFCRMATICN

Cash paid during the year for interest net of capitalized interest 12638 7727 9872

Cash paid during the year for income taxes 1788 1822

The accompanyinq notes are an inteqral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of U.S dollars exoept share and per share data unless otherwise stated

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements

include the ecnniints nf Aegean Marine Petrnleum

Network Inc hereinafter referred to as Aegean and

its subsidiaries Aegean and its subsidiaries are here

inafter collectively referred to as the Company The

Oompany is an independent physical supplier and

marketer of refined marine fuel and lubricants to ships

in port and at sea

Aegean was formed on June 2005 under the laws

of the Republic of the Marshall Islands for the pur

pose ot acquiring all outstanding common shares ot

companies owned directly and indirectly by Leveret

International Inc Leveret which is personal

holding company owned and controlled by Aegeans

founder and Head of Corporate Development Mr

Dimitris Melisanidis The transaction described above

constitutes reorganization of companies under

common control and has been accounted for in

manner similar to pooling of interests Accordingly

the combined and consolidated financial statements

of the Company have been presented giving retroac

five effert tn the trancar.tinn desc.rihed ahnve using

combined and consolidated historical carrying costs

of the assets and liabilities

In December 2006 Aegean completed its initial pub
lic offering of 14375000 common shares on the New

York Stock Exchange 2006 PC under the United

States Securities Act of 1933 as amended

Material Subsidiaries

aAegean Madne Petroleum S.A AMP incorpo

rated in the Republic of Liberia on January 19%
is engaged in the commercial purchase and sale ot

marine petroleum products and is the principal

operating entity of the Company

bService Centers which monitor and support the

logistical aspects of each order in their respective

geographical locations

Company Name

Aegean Marine Petroleum LLC fthe UAE Service Center

Aegean Bunkering Gibraltar Ltd the Gibraltar Service Center

Aegean Bunkering Jamaica Ltd the Jamaica Service Center

Aegean Marine Petroleum LLC is also the owner of the

Aegean Flower 6523 dwt built in 2001 oil products

tanker purchased on January 2004

West Coast Fuel Transport is also the owner of PT 25

2560 dwt built in 1988 oil products barge pur

chased on July 2008

ICS Petroleum LTD is also the owner of FT 36 3730

dwt built in 1980 oil products barge purchased on

July 2008

Country of Date ot

Incorporation Incorporation

United Arab Emirates 07/26/2000

Gibraltar 08/07/1997

Jamaica 11/25/2004

Aegean Bunkering Singapore Pte Ltd the Singapore Service Center

Aegean Bunkering Ghana Limited the West Africa Service Center

Aegean Bunkers at Sea NV ABAS the NW Europe Service Center

Portland Bunkers International Ltd the UK Service Center

CS Petroleum LTD Vancouver

CS Petroleum Montreal LTD

West Coast Fuel Transport Mexico

Aegean Bunkering Trinidad Ltd the Trinidad Service Center

Verbeke Shipping NV the Verbeke Business Center

Aegean Bunkering Combustibles Las Palmas S.A the Las Palmas Center

Singapore

Ghana

Belgium

United Kingdom

Canada

Canada

Canada

Trinidad Tobago

Belgium

Las Palmas

06/07/2005

05/18/2007

12/1 6/1 999

12/13/1999

11/25/1985

06/03/1986

09/1 0/1 990

02/20/2006

02/12/1986

04/30/2010

Aegean Bunkers at Sea NV is also the owner of Sara

7389 dwt built in 1990 oil products tanker pur

chased on October 2007

Aegean Bunkering Gibraltar Ltd also provides techni

cal and logistics support to the Companys operations

in Morocco in the Tangier Med area
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The companies of the Verheke Business are also the owners of the following vessels

Vessel Details

Company Name Vessel Name Year Built Size dwt Date Acquired

Aegean Barges Colorado 2004 SOBS 0410112010

Verbeke Bunkering Vigc 1971 1319 04/01/2010

Aegean Barges Elhe 1962 642 04/01/2010

Aegean Barges Ellen 1971 1439 04/01/2010

Aegean Barges Blender 1963 736 04/01/2010

Verheke Bunkering Willem SB 2006 3160 04/01/2010

Verbeke Bunkering Steidamm 1972 1634 04/01/2010

Jadacc Tapuit 1971 2500 04/01/2010

Blatoma Texas 2003 4165 04/01/2010

cAegean Bunkenng Services /nc the Manager was incorporated in the Marshall Islands on July 11 2003

and provides all the vessel-owning companies listed below with wide range of shipping services such

as technical support and maintenance insurance arrangement and handling financial administration and

accounting services

Vessel owning Companies with Operating Vessels

Date ct
Vessel Details

Ccmpany Name lncorpcration Vessel Name Year Built Size dwt Date Acquired

Aegean Seven Maritime Inc Aegean VII 01/20/1998 Aegean VII 1994 3992 02/04/1 998

Clyde Shipping Corp Clyde 06/10/2004 Aegean Tulip 1993 4863 06/20/2004

Aegean Maritime Inc Aegean 08/31/2004 Aegean 1992 6400 09/31/2004

Mare Vision S.A Mare 11/01/2005 Aegean XI 1964 11050 05/03/2006

Aegean Tanking S.A Tanking 07/12/2006 Fos II 1081 67060 00/05/2006

Vera Navigation Vera 09/14/2007 Vera 1986 3720 10/09/2007

Milos Maritime Inc Milos 01/28/2005 Hope 1960 10597 08/24/2007

Curanos Tanking Ouranos 02/09/2007 Curanos 1983 67980 02/20/2007

Sea Breezer Marine Sea Breezer 04/02/2004 Aegean Princess 1991 030 05/25/2007

Milos Shipping Pte Ltd Milos 11/23/2006 Milos 2007 4626 06/29/2007

Serifos Shipping Pte Ltd Seritos 11/23/2006 Seritos 2007 4664 11/20/2007

Pontos Navigation Inc Pontos 09/09/2002 Leader 1986 83890 09/21/2007

Mykonos Maritime Inc Mykonos 01/28/2005 Mykonos 2008 4626 06/25/2008

Santorini Maritime Inc Santorini 01/28/2005 Santorini 2008 4629 09/26/2008

Amorgos Maritime Inc Amorgos 01/28/2005 Amorgos 2007 4664 12/21/2007

Eton Marine Ltd Eton 12/21/2005 Patmos 2008 6262 11/18/2008

Kithnos Maritime Inc Kithnos 01/28/2005 Kithnos 2007 4626 11/30/2007

Paros Shipping Pte Ltd Paros 01/28/2005 Paros 2008 4629 11/25/2008

Kimolos Shipping Pte Ltd Kimolos 01/28/2005 Kimolos 2008 4664 03/04/2008

Syros Maritime Inc Syros 01/28/2006 Syros 2008 4596 04/21/2008

Silver Sea Shipping S.A Aegean Star 03/09/2009 Aegean Star 1980 11520 04/08/2009

AMP Maritime Aegean Champion 12/15/2008 Aegean Champion 1991 23400 04/30/2009

Kerkyra Marine S.A Kerkyra 09/26/2006 Kerkyra 2009 6290 07/29/2009

Tasman Seaways Inc Kalymnos 12/21/2005 Kalymnos 2009 6283 02/20/2009

Paxoi Marine S.A Paxoi 09/26/2006 Paxoi 2009 6310 11/20/2009

Ithaki Shipping Pte Ltd Ithaki 07/06/2009 Ithaki 2009 6272 09/01/2009

Naxos Shipping Pte Ltd Naxos 12/18/2008 Naxos 2009 4626 01/07/2009

Cephallonia Marine S.A 09/26/2006 Kefalonia 2009 6272 10/15/2009

PT 22 Shipping Co Ltd PT 22 01/22/2009 PT 22 2001 2315 06/29/2009

Letkas Shipping Pte Ltd Letkas 09/26/2006 Letkas 2010 6321 03/16/2010

Andros Marine Inc Andros 02/21/2007 Andros 2010 4605 02/05/2010

Zakynthos Marine S.A Zakynthos 09/27/2006 Zakynthos 2010 6303 01/20/2010

Victory Sea Shipping Victory 12/30/2009 Aeolos 1990 84040 06/07/2010

Kythira Marine S.A Kythira 09/26/2006 Kythira 2010 6314 04/30/2010

Dilos Marine Inc Dilos 02/21/2007 Dilos 2010 4593 06/05/2010

Benmore Services Benmore 12/21/2006 Nisyros 2010 6312 06/01/2010

Ingram Enterprises Co Ingram 01/10/2006 Karpathos 2010 6247 07/12/2010

Santon Limited Santon 01/10/2006 Leros 2010 6311 09/03/2010

los Marine Inc los 02/21/2007 los 2010 4620 09/08/2010

Kassos Navigation Kassos 02/14/2008 Kassos 2010 6256 10/29/2010
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Expressed in thousands of U.S dollars except share and per share data unless otherwise stated

As of December 31 2009 and 2010 Aegeans owner

ship interest in all the above subsidiaries except for

the UAE Service Center amounted to 100%

During the years ended December 31 2008 2009

and 2010 no customer individually accounted for more

than 1000 of the Companys total revenues

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FCLIC1ES

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial

statements have been prepared in accurdance with

generally accepted accounting principles and

include for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 the accounts and operating

results of the Company Intercompany balances and

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Eshmates The preparation of consolidated

financial statements in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles requires management

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclo

sure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of

the consolidated financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the report

ing period Actual results could differ from those

estimates

Other Comprehensive Income The guidance regard

ing reporting comprehensive income/loss requires

separate presentation of certain transactions that are

recurded directly as cunipunents uf stuckhuldeis

equity During 2008 the Company reported cumula

tive translation adjustments in accumulated other

comprehensive income arising from the translation of

the financial statements of its Euro functional currency

subsidiaries into U.S dollars As of December 31

2008 the amount of cumulative tçanslation adlust

ments was $211 As of December 31 2009 and 2010

due to the sale of the vessels of these subsidiaries the

amount of cumulative translation adjustments is $0

Vessel owning companies with vessels under construction

Cumpany Nrne

Date ot

lucuipuiatiun

Vessel Deta Is

Hut NurHbei SiLe çdwt

Sitnos Marine Inc Sitnos 02/21/2007 DN 3800 14 600

Tinos Marne Inc Tnos 02/21/2007 DN 3800 15 4600

TIes Navigation Tilos 02/14/2008 OHS 226 5500

HaIli Navigation Halki 02/14/2009 OHS 227 5500

Symi Navigation S.A Symi 02/14/2008 OHS 228 500

Scatra EVEA Montana 02/18/2008 NB1166 4560

Aegean Management Services was incorporated in Firaeus on February 20 2008 and provides all the

vessel maritime companies listed below with wide range of shipping services such as technical support for

ISM purposes insurance arrangement and handling and accounting services

gl Vessel madtime companies 14 ith operating vessels

Date ot

Incorporation

Vessel Details

Company Name Vessel Name Year Built Size fdwt Date Acquired

Aegean Tittany Maritime Company 01/23/2009 Aegean Tittany 2004 2747 07/07/2004

Aegean Breeze Maritime Company 01/23/2009 Aegean Breeze 2004 747 07/07/2004

Aegean Rcse Maritime Company 12/02/2002 Aegean Rose 1988 4935 01/21/2003

Aegean Daisy Maritime Company 12/02/2002 Aegean Daisy 1988 4935 01/21/2003

Aegean Ship III Maritime Company 06/23/2008 Aegean III 1990 2973 07/08/2008

Aegean Ship VIII Maritme Company 06/23/2008 Aegean VIII 1989 2973 07/08/2008

Aegean XII Ship Maritime Company 06/23/2008 Aegean XII 1979 680 07/08/2008

Aegean Ace Maritime Company 01/26/2009 Aegean Ace 1992 615 03/23/2009

Agean MaCtros Maritime Company 11/21/2007 Aegen Orion 1991 550 0/07/2000

Aegean Gas Mar time Company 07/24/2001 Mediterranean 1982 19894 02/28/2010

Other companies with matenal assets and or habilities

Company Name

Date ot

Incorporation

Country ot

Incorporation Activity

Aegean Investments S.A Aegean Investments 11/05/2003 Marsha Islands Holding company
Aegean Oil USA LLC Aegean USA 04/07/2005 United States Marketing office

Aegean Petroleum International Inc 02/22/2008 Marshall Islands Fuel commerce

AMFNI He dings Co Lim ted AMFNI Holdings 02/02/2009 Cyprus Holding company
Aegean Caribbean Holdings Inc 01/07/2009 Saint Lucia Holding company
Caribbean Renewable Energy Sources Inc 02/02/2007 British Virgin Island Asset holder

Aegean Dii Terminal Corporation 04/14/2008 Marshal Islands Site rnnstriintinn
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Foreign Currency Transactions The functional cur

rency of Aegean and its material subsidiaries is the

U.S dollar because the Company purchases and sells

marine petroleum products in the international oil and

gas markets and because the Companys vessels

operate in international shipping markets both of

these international markets transact business primarily

in U.S dollars The Companys accounting records

are maintained in U.S dollars Transactions involving

Other currencies during the year are converted into

U.S dollars using the exchange rates in etfect at the

time of the transactions At the balance sheet dates

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other

currencies are adjusted to reflect the year end

exchange rates Resulting gains or losses are reflected

separately in the accompanying consolidated state

ments of income As required by the general accepted

accounting principles for foreign currency transac

tions the tinancial statements of the subsidiaries with

functional currencies other than U.S dollars functional

currency subsidiaries have been converted to U.S

dollars by the application ot the translation method

current rate method All assets and liabilities are

translated using the current exchange rate Share

holders equity accounts are translated using historical

rates Revenues and expenses are translated using

the weighted average exchange rate in effect during

the period Exchange differences on the translation of

entities with functional currencies other than the U.S

dollar are recognized directly in the toreign currency

translation reserve as other comprehensive income

The translation method has been applied until the sale

of the vessels in June 2009 which had the different

functional currency

Cash and Cash Equivalents The tiompany considers

highly liquid investments such as time deposits and

certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three

months or less to be cash equivalents

Restricted Cash Restricted cash consists of interest

bearing deposits with certain banks as cash collateral

against outstanding short term facilities and retention

accounts that can only be used for the purposes ot

repayment of current portions of long term loans

Restricted cash also includes interest-bearing depos

its with an international bank as cash collateral against

standby letters of credit issued by the same bank to

shipyard Restricted cash is classitied as non current

when the funds are to be used to acquire non current

assets

Trade Receivables Net Management is responsible

tor approving credit to customers setting and main

taming credit standards and managing the overall

quality ot the credit portfolio The Company performs

ongoing credit evaluations of its customers based

upon payment history and the assessments of cus

tomers creditworthiness The Company generally pro

vides payment terms of approimately 30 days The

Company continuously monitors collections and pay

ments from its customers and maintains provision for

estimated credit losses based upon its historical expe
rience with its customers current market conditions ot

its customers and any specific customer collection

issues Accounts receivable are reduced by an allow

ance for amounts that may become uncollectible in

the future The Company had accounts receivable of

$277381 and $440975 before allowances for bad

debts of $1751 and $1293 as of December 31 2009

and auiu respectively

Insurance Claims Insurance claims are recorded on

the accrual basis once there remain no contingencies

relating to the claim Insurance claims represent the

claimable expenses net of deductibles incurred

through December 31 ot each year which are

expected to be recovered from insurance companies

Any remaining costs to complete the claims are

included in accrued liabilities

Inventories Inventories comprise marine fuel oil

MFC marine gas oil MDC lubricants and vic

tualling stores which are stated at the lower of cost or

market Cost is determined by the first in tirst cut

method

Vessel Cost Vessels are stated at cost which consists

of the contract price and any material expenses

incurred upon acquisition initial repairs improve

ments and delivery expenses interest and on-site

supervision costs incurred during the construction

periods Subsequent expenditures for conversions

and major improvements are also capitalized when

they appreciably extend the life increase the earning

capacity or improve the efficiency or satety ct the ves

sels otherwise these amounts are charged to expense

as incurred

Advances and milestone payments made to shipyards

during construction periods are classified as Advances

for vessels under construction and acquisitions until

the date of delivery and acceptance ot the vessel at

which date they are reclassitied to Vessels cost

Advances for vessels under cunstructiun alsu include

supervision costs amounts paid under engineering

contracts capitalized interest and other expenses

directly related to the construction of the vessels

Amounts of interest to be capitalized during the asset

acquisition period are determined by applying an

interest rate to the average amount of accumulated

expenditures for the asset during the period The inter

est rate used is the average cost of borrowing for the

Company
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Expressed in thousands of U.S dollars except share and per share data unless otherwise stated

Vessels acquired as part of an acquisition are recog

nized at their fair value as at the date of the acquisition

Vessel Depreciation on Ocean going Bunkering

Tankers Depreciation is computed using the sfraight

line method over the estimafed useful life of the ves

sels after considering the estimated salvage value

Each vessels estimated salvage value is equal to the

product of its light weight tonnage and the estimated

scrap rate Management estimates the useful life of fhe

Companys bunkering and non-bunkering tankers to

be 30 years and 25 years respectively from the dafe

of initial delivery from the shipyard Management esti

mates the useful life of the Companys floatinq storaqe

facilities to be 30 years from the date of acquisition

Secondhand vessels are depreciated from the date of

their acquisition through their remaining estimated

useful life However when regulations place limitafions

on the ability of vessel fo trade its useful life is

adjusted to end at the date such regulations become

effective

Vessel Depreciation on In Land Waterway Bunkenng

Tankers Depreciation is compufed using the straight

line method over the estimated useful life of the yes

sels after considering the estimated salvage value

Each vessels estimated salvage value is equal to the

product of ifs light weighf tonnage and the estimated

scrap rate Management estimates the useful life of the

in land waterway bunkering tankers to be 45 years

from the dafe of the inifial delivery from the shipyard

Intangible Assets Intangible assets consist of two

concession agreements one in the United Kingdom

and one in the Canary Islands non compete cove

nant in Belgium and goodwill derived from the

Companys acquisitions in Belgium and Canada

In connection with the acquisitions of Portland Bunkers

International Limited and Las Palmas Business Note

the Company recorded identifiable intangible assets

and concession agreements which convey to the

Company an exclusive right to perform bunkering

operations in the port of Portland and Las Palmas over

specified period of time These assets are being

amortized over their useful life

Ooodwilf As required by the goodwill topic of the

FASB Accounting Standard Codification goodwill is

not amortized but reviewed as of December 31 of

each year for impairment The Company also evalu

ates goodwill for impairment at any time that events

occur or circumstances change indicating possible

impairment The Company tests for goodwill impair

ment using the two-step process The first step is

screen for potential impairment while the second step

measures the amount of impairment Fair values are

derived using discounted cash flow analysis

Impairment of Long lived Assets Accounting guid

ance requires that long-lived assets and certain iden

tifiable intangible assets held and used to

disposed of by an entity be reviewed for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances mdi

cafe that the carrying amount of the assets may not be

recoverable When the estimate of undiscounted cash

flows excluding interest charges expected to be gen

erated by the use of the asset and any future disposal

is less than its carrying amount the asset should be

evaluated for an impairment loss Measurement of the

impairment loss is based on the fair value of the asset

as determined by management considering third party

valuations and discounted future cash flows attribut

able to the vessel or asset group The Company regu

larly reviews the carrying amount of its vessels The

Company had no impairment losses in any of the peri

ods presented

Accounting for Orydocking Costs The Companys

vessels are generally required to be drydocked every

30 to 60 months for major repairs and maintenance

that cannot be performed while the vessels are in

operation The Company follows the deferral method

of accounting for drydocking costs whereby actual

costs incurred are deferred and are amortized on

straight line basis over the period through the date

the next drydocking is scheduled to become due

Unamortized drydocking costs of vessels that are sold

are written off against income in the year of the yes

sels sale

Leases The Company leases properties for opera

tions from time to time Leases are classified as capital

leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer sub

stantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee All other leases are classified as operating

leases

The Company records vessels under capital leases as

fixed assets at the lower of the present value of the

minimum lease payments at inception of the lease

or the fair value of the vessel Vessels under capital

leases are amortized over the estimated remaining

useful life of the vessel or until the end of the lease

term if shorter Assets held under capital leases are

presented as Advances for vessels under construc

tion and acquisitions in the balance sheet until the

vessel is deemed ready for its intended use and the

balance is reclassified to Vessels cost The current

portion of capitalized lease obligations are reflected in

the balance sheet in Accrued and other current liabili

ties and remaining long-term capitalized lease obliga

tions are presented as Other non current liabilities
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Financing Costs Fees incurred for obtaining new

loans or refinancing existing loans are deterred and

nmnrti7ed tn interest expense nver the life nf the

related debt using the eftective interest method

Unamortized fees relating to loans repaid or refi

nanced are generally expensed in the period the

repayment or refinancing is made

Pension and Retirement Benefit Obligations The vessel

owning companies included in the consolidation

employ the crew on board under short term contracts

usually up to nine months and accordingly they are

not liable for any pension or post retirement benetits

The Companys full time Greek employees are coy

ered by state sponsored pension funds for which the

Company is required to contribute portion of the

monthly salary of these employees to the fund i.e

defined contribution plan Upon retirement of these

employees the state sponsored pension tunds are

responsible for paying the employees retirement ben

efits and accordingly the Company has no obligation

tor these benefits

Accounting for Revenues and Expenses Revenues

are principally earned from the physical supply of

marine petroleum products via the Companys bunker

ing tankers In this respect sales of marine petroleum

products and cost of sales of marine petroleum prod

ucts are recorded in the period when the marine

petroleum products are loaded onto the customers

vessel In Greece revenues are earned from the sale

of marine petroleum products through related party

physical supplier refer to Note These sales and the

respective cost of sales are recorded in the period

when the related party physical supplier delivers the

marine petroleum products to the customer

For arrangements in which the Company physically

supplies marine petroleum products via its own bun

kering tankers cost of marine petroleum products sold

represents amounts paid by the Company for marine

petroleum products sold in the period being reported

on For arrangements in which marine petroleum prod

ucts are purchased from the Companys related party

physical supplier cost of marine petroleum products

sold represents the total amount paid by the Company
to the physical supplier for marine petroleum products

and the delivery thereof to the Companys customer

Revenues are also generated from voyage agree

ments of the Companys vessels Under voyage

charter the revenues and associated voyage costs are

recognized on pro rata basis over the duration of the

voyage Probable losses on voyages are provided for

in full at the time such losses can be estimated

voyage is deemed to commence upon the later of the

completion of discharge of the vessels previous cargo

or upon vessel arrival to the agreed upon port based

nn the terms nf vnyage contract and nnt ranrel

able and voyage is deemed to end upon the comple

tion of discharge of the delivered cargo

Operating expenses are accounted for on the accrual

basis

Repairs and Maintenance All vessel repair and main

tenance expenses including major overhauling which

are non scheduled repairs and maintenance work

undertaken on vessels engine and underwater

inspections are expensed in the year incurred Such

costs are included in other operadng expenses in the

accompanying consolidated statements of income

Income Taxes The Company accounts for income

taxes using the liability method as required by the

generally accepted accounting principles for income

taxes reporting Under this method deferred income

tax assets and liabilities are established for temporary

differences between the financial reporting basis and

the tax basis of the Companys assets and liabilities at

each period end corresponding to those jurisdictions

sublect to income taxes Deferred tav assets and ha

bilities are recognized for all temporary items and an

offsetting valuation allowance is recorded to the extent

that it is not more likely than not that the asset will be

realized Deferred tax is measured based on tax rates

and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the hal

ance sheet date in any jurisdiction

Income tax regulations in the different countries in

which the Company operates under which the Com

panys uncertain income tax positions are determined

could be interpreted differently resulting in tax obhiga

tions differing from those currently presented In this

sense the income tax returns of the Companys pri

mary tax jurisdictions remain subject to examination

by related tax authorities

Earnings per Common Share Basic earnings per

common share are computed by dividing net income

available to common stockholders by the weighted

average number of common shares deemed out

standing during the year Net income available to

common stockholders is calculated as net income

less that amount allocable to non-vested share based

payment awards that contain rights to receive non-

forfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents and par

ticipate equally in undistributed earnings Non vested

share-based payment awards have no contract obhi

gations to share in the losses of the entity and are

therefore excluded from the calculation of loss per

share Diluted earnings per common share reflect the

potential dilution that could occur it securities or other
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contracts to issue common stock were exercised

Dilution has been computed by the treasury stock

method whereby all of the Companys dilutive securi

ties are assumed to be exercised and the proceeds

used to repurchase common shares at the weighted

average market price of the Companys common stock

during the relevant periods The incremental shares

the difference between the number ot shares

assumed issued and the number of shares assumed

purchased are included in the denominator of the

diluted earnings per share computation Non vested

shares are included in the calculation of the diluted

earnings per shares based on the weighted average

number of non-vested shares assumed to be out

standing during the period

Contingencies The Company accrues for loss it the

Company deems it probable that an asset has been

impaired or that liability
has been incurred at the

date of the financial statements and the amount of that

loss can be reasonably estimated If the Company
deems it reasonably possible that an asset has been

impaired or that liability
has been incurred the

nature of the contingency and an estimate of the

amount of loss is disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements

Financial Instruments The carrying amounts of cash

and cash equivalents trade accounts receivable and

trade accounts payable reported in the consolidated

balance sheets approximate their respective fair

values because of the short term nature of these

accounts The fair value of revolving credit facilities is

estimated based on current rates offered to the

Company for similar debt of the same remaining

maturities Additinnally the Cnmpany nnnsiders its

creditworthiness in determining the fair value of the

revolving credit facilities The carrying value approxi

mates the fair market value for the floating rate loans

because interest rates are based on the market rates

Recent Accounhng Pronouncements In June 2009
new guidance was issued with regards to the consoli

dation of variable interest entities VIE This guid

ance responds to concerns about the application of

certain key provisions of the FASB Interpretation

including those regarding the transparency of the

involvement with VIEs The new guidance revises the

approach to determining the primary beneficiary of

VIE to be more qualitative in nature and requires com

panies to more frequently reassess whether they must

consolidate VIE Specifically the new guidance

requires qualitative approach to identifying control

ling financial interest in VIE and requires ongoing

assessment of whether an entity is VIE and whether

an interest in VIE makes the holder the primary ben

eficiary of the VIE In addition the standard requires

additional disclosures about the involvement with

VIE and any significant changes in risk exposure due

to that involvement The guidance is effective as of the

beginning of the first fiscal year that begins after

November 15 2009 and early adoption is prohibited

This guidance did not have material impact on the

Companys financial statements as of December

31 2010

In January 2010 new guidance clarified that all assets

acquired in business combination other than good

will should be valued based on the fair value at the

date of acquisition This includes difficult to value

intangible assets that had previously been valued

using the residual value method under common prac

tice The guidance was effective immediately upon

issuance This guidance did not have an impact on

the Companys financial statements as of December

31 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACOUISITICNS

Verbeke Business On April 2010 the Company via

its subsidiaries AMPNI Holdings Co Limited AMFNI

Investments Co Limited and Aegean Barges NV col

lectively the Buyer acquired all of the outstanding

share capital of Verbeke Bunkering NV Verbeke

Bunkering the Blatoma NV and certain assets

Verbeke Shipping vessels or collectively the

Verbeke Business from Verbeke Shipping NV
Verbeke Shipping or the Seller for total consider

ation of $59217 The Verbeke Business is Belgian

fuel logistics company that physically supplies marine

fuel and lubricants to seagoing ships in ports and at

sea The Verbeke Business phmahly operates in the

Antwerp Rotterdam-Amsterdam ARA region the

worlds second largest bunkering market In addition

Verbeke Bunkering is active in the ports of Zeebrugge

Ostend Ghent Terneuzen Flushing Ljmuiden and

Moerdijk The Company entered into this transaction

as strategic opportunity for expansion to the ARA

region in which it had limited presence The Company
also expects to realize meaningful operational syner

gies with its Belgium based subsidiary ABAS which

was acquired by the Company in 2007

The following table presents the fair value of the assets

and liabilities as of the acquisition date Measurement

period adjustments recorded include reduction in

the value of vessels acquired of $298 to comply with

the fair valuation and an increase in liabilities acquired

of $200 for lawsuits outstanding at the date of

acquisition
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Adjusted Purchase Prce

Cash cons deration to sellers

Pair Valjp nf Asptc nd Lwhi ifls Arqiird

Cash and ca equivalents

Trade rcce vables

Prepaymerts and other current assets

Restricted cash

Inventories

Advances tor vesse under corstruction

Vessels cost

Other hxed assets

Nor compete covenants

Trade payables

Short term borrowings

Long term debt

Accrued and other ab lities

Deterred tax liability

Non current liabilities

Total tair value ot assets and abilities

acqu red 38702

Goodwll 20515

Pro forma information of the Company as though the

acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the cur

rent reporting year and comparable information for the

prior reportinct year is impracticable since the reliabil

ity on the pre acquisition figures is ambiguous due to

different accounting principles and policies applied

Pro-torma information would requjre significant assump

tions and estimations of amounts ince measurement

recognition and disclosures under the prior manage
ment varied

The amounts of revenue and earnings of the Verbeke

Business since the acquisition date included in the

consolidated income statements are as follows

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

tear Lndeu

December 31

2009 2010

Balance at beginn ng ot perod 17431 17431

Additons 20515

Balance at end ot period 17431 37946

Las Pa/mas Bus/ness On July 2010 the Company

acquired Shells Las Palmas terminal operations the

Las Palmas Business for total consideration of

$10300 excluding direct acquisition costs The Las

Palmas Business had entered into concession

agreement with the port authorities to use the port

facilities and territory an agreement that was trans

ferred to the Company upon the acquisition

All direct costs are included in the acquisition cost

since the Las Palmas Business acquisition is an asset

acquisition

The fol owing table presents the purchase accounting

adlustments as of the acquisihor date

Adlusted Purcra Price

Cash consideration to seller

Acquisition costs

Ad usted purcha price 10525

An identifiable intangible asset was recognized con

sisting of an exclusive 28 year concession agreement

with the port authorities which gives Aegean an exclu

sive right to perform storage and bunkering operations

at that port There were no other significant assets

acquired in this transaction

This asset is being amortized on straight-line basis

over the remaining contractual life of the agreement

from July 2010 to January 2028 Amortization

expense of $301 was recognized for the period from

the date of acquisition until December 31 2010

The goodwill presented in the accompanying consoli

59217 dated balance sheets is analyzed as follows

6090

93252

1.886

342

6552

1269

22180

2.296

3365

22.337

61781
7445
4323
2584

60

10300

225

Total revenues

Net income

1150.890

043

The transactions with related parties presented in thc accompanying consolidated balance sheets for the year

ended December 31 2010 are analyzed as follows

Other

Revenues

Sales ot Cost ot

Mar ne Marine

Trade Other Petroleum Petroleum

Due trom Payable to Payables Products Products

Related Re ated to Related Related Related

Companies Companies Companies Companies Cornpan es

AegeanOil 797 18.472 3688 303620 1410

Aegean Shipping Management 7225 7619

Genera Maritime 9813 30030

Pairy Marine 253

Melco 521 4134

Other 901 572

Total 20510 18472 572 45471 303.620 410
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aAegean Oil the Greek Subcontractor The

Greek Subcontractor owned and controlled by

rlativ nf Mr Dimitris Melinanidis divrified

energy group principally engaged in the down

stream gasoline industry in Greece where it manages

network ot approximately 560 service stations

The Greek Subcontractor is managed by tull time

executive team and has no common management

with the Company In addition to its principal opera

tions the Greek Subcontractor is also licensed

trader and physical supplier ot marine petroleum

products in Greece On December 30 1999 and

as amended on September 25 2000 the Company

signed Bunkering Supply and Representation

Agreement with the Greek Subcontractor whereby

the Greek Subcontractor undertakes to sell and

deliver marine petroleum products in transit to the

Companys nominated customer vessels within

Greek territorial waters Under the contract the

Greek Subcontractor sells the marine petroleum

products to the Company at an amount equal to the

Greek Subcontractors purchase cost ot the marine

petroleum products from select Greek refineries

plus margin

On April 2005 this contract was terminated and

superseded by ten-year Marine Fuel Supply

Service Agreement with the Greek Subcontractor

This contract stipulates that the Company and the

Greek Subcontractor must transact for minimum

quantity of marine fuel per month Under the con

tract the Greek Subcontractor undertakes to sell

the marine petroleum products to the Company at

an amount equal to the Greek Subcontractors pur

chase cost of the marine petroleum products from

select Greek refineries plus margin The margin

is reviewed and renegotiated annually between

the parties Fayment of the Greek Subcontractors

invoices are made within 30 calendar days from the

date of receipt of the invoice Penalties of 10% are

imposed on late payments If requested the Com

pany undertakes to provide security to the Greek

Subcontractor by way of standby letter of credit

or other mutually acceptable guarantee in relation

to any outstanding balance from time to time The

agreement terminates on March 31 2015 unless

any of the following situations occur prior to the ter

mination date The Greek Subcontractors petro

leum trading license terminates or is revoked by the

Greek authorities upon the breach by any party

in the performance of any of its obligations as

defined in the agreement ni upon the liquidation

or bankruptcy of any party The Company has

unilateral right to terminate the agreement by serv

ing 12 months written notice

During the years ended December 2008 2009 and

2010 the Company purchased from the Greek

Subcontractor marine petrnlum prndurtc nf

$351532 $267767 and $303620 respectively all

of which are included under related companies

cost of marine petroleum products sold in the

accompanying consolidated statements of income

During the year ended December 31 2010 the

Company also sold to the Greek Subcontractor

marine petroleum products of $3688 which is

included under the related companies sales of

marine petroleum products in the accompanying

consolidated statements of income

As of December 31 2009 and 2010 the amounts

due to the Greek Subcontractor were $24844 and

$18472 respectively and are included under trade

payables to related companies in the accompany

ing consolidated balance sheets

In 2008 the Company entered into an agreement

with the Greek Subcontractor The Company was

paying $40 per month and $25 per month per yes

sel used in 2008 and 2009 respectively as barg

ing fee to the Greek Subcontractor for bunkering

services on the Companys behalf at Firaeus and

other Greek ports As of June 2010 the above

agreement was terminated During the year ended

December 31 2009 and 2010 the Company had

paid $2500 and $1000 million respectively under

the bunkering agreement

Also the Subcontractor had entered into bareboat

charter agreement with the owners of Aegean Ill

Aegean VIII Aegean XII Aegean Rose Aegean

Daisy Aegean Breeze Aegean Tiffany Aegean

Ace and Aegean urion at $u.5 per day per vessel

For the year ended December 31 2009 and 2010

the bareboat charter revenue was $1319 and $627

and is presented under other revenues in the

accompanying consolidated statement of income

In connection with the above bareboat charter

agreements with the owners of the vessels the

Company provided management services to the

Subcontractor for the ISM code at $10 per month

per vessel For the year ended December 31 2009

and 2010 the revenue from the services was $784

and $336 and is also presented under other reve

nues in the accompanying consolidated statement

of income As at December 31 2009 and 2010 the

amounts due from the related party concerning

these transactions were $0 and $797 respectively

and are included under due from related compa
nies in the accompanying con$olidated balance

sheets

As of June 2010 the above agreements were

terminated
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On October 2008 the Greek Subcontractor and

the Companys subsidiary Aegean Maistros Maritime

Cnmpany owner nf Rn Rn Maistros signd an

agreement so that the Greek Subcontractor could

ship 55000 cubic meters of petroleum products

per annum at 07 or $0.09 per cubic meter This

contract was terminated on June 10 2009 when

the Company sold the two specialty tankers

Maistros and Ostria to an unaffiliated third-party

purchaser For the year ended December 31 2009

and 2010 the Company had received $2143 and

$0 which are presented under voyage revenues

in the accompanying consolidated statement of

income

Additionally as of April 2010 the Greek Sub

contractor and the Companys subsidiary Aegean

Gas owner ot the vessel Mediterranean signed an

agreement so that the Greek Subcontractor could

use the vessel as storage facility upon rate of

35000 per month For the year ended December

31 2010 the Companys revenue under this con

tract was $447 and is presented under other reve

nues in the accompanying consolidated statement

of income

bAegean Shipping Management S.A and Cerfain

Vessel owning Companies hereinafter collectively

referred to as Aegean Shipping Aegean Shipping

is owned by relatives of Mr Dimitris Melisanidis and

is the owner and operator of an international ship

ping fleet of tankers that are chartered out in the

international spot markets Aegean Shipping is

managed by full time executive team and has no

common management with the Company The

Companys material transactions with Aeoean

Shipping are described as follows

Aegean Shipping is customer of the Company
It purchases marine fuel and lubricants which it

consumes during the voyages of its vessels

The Companys sales of marine fuel and lubri

cants to Aegean Shipping for the years ended

December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 amounted

to $9628 $5779 and $7619 respectively and

are included under related companies sales of

marine petroleum products in the accompany

ing consolidated statements of income

On October 14 2009 the Companys subsid

iary Aegean Ostria Maritime Company entered

into memorandum of agreement with Aegean

Gas Maritime Company company owned

and controlled by members of the family of

Mr Dimitris Melisanidis for the purchase of

20000 dwt double hull bunkering barge the

Mediterranean to be used as floating storage

facility The purchase price of the vessel was

$17000 The anqnicitinn nnmpleted nn

February 25 2010 The purchase was com
pleted by acquiring the shares of the company

owning the Mertiterranean by Rmending the

memorandum of agreement

As of December 31 2009 and 2010 the amounts

due from Aegean Shipping were $6894 and $7225

respectively and are included in the accompany

ing consolidated balance sheets

General Mantime Corporahon General Madtime

Aegeans Chairman of the Board Mr Peter

Georgiopoulos also serves as Chairman President

and Chief Executive Officer of General Maritime

whiuh j5 publiuly trcrded tonkur bun ipnny with

shares listed on the New York Stock Exchange

During the years ended December 31 2008 2009

and 2010 the Companys sales to General Maritime

amounted to $1258 $7326 and $30030 respec

tively which are included under related companies

sales of marine petroleum products in the accom

panying consolidated statements of income As at

December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 the amounts

due from General Maritime were $21 $1144 and

$9813 respectively which are included in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets

dFairy Madne Ltd Fairy Madne In 2009 the

Company entered into three separate agreements

with Fairy Marine which is owned and controlled

by relatives of Mr Dimitris Melisanidis for the ves
sel Aegean IX On January 2009 the bareboat

charter agreement set $0.2 per day as charter hire

the management agreement signed on January 10

2009 was agreed for $6 per month and finally the

charter party agreement on January 2009
defined the tirrie charter fee fur $3.5 per day

However on December 18 2009 all the above

agreements were terminated after the sale of

the vessel Aegean IX to an unaffiliated third party

purchaser

For the years ended December 31 2009 and 2010

the bareboat and the management agreement

resulted to $136 and $0 respectively and are

included in the other revenues in the accompany

ing consolidated balance sheets while the time

charter expenses upon the agreement amounted to

$1201 and $0 and are included in the other oper

ating expenses in the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets As at December 31 2009 the

Company is liable to the Fairy Marine for the amount

of $555 which is included in other payables to

related parties in the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets while as at December 31 2010 the

amount due from Fairy Marine was $1253 and is

included in the accompanying consolidated bal

ance sheets
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eMelco S.A Melco7 During the year ended

December 31 2010 the Company sold to Melco

which in nwnd and rnntrnllnd by relatives nf Mr

Dimitris Melisanidis marine petroleum products ot

$4134 which is included under the related compa
nies sales ot marine petroleum products in the

accompanying consolidated statements of income

As at December 31 2010 the amount due from

Melco was $521 and is included in the accompany

tng consolidated balance sheets

Other Companies The amounts due from other

companies of Aegeans Cha rman of the Board Mr

Peter Georgiopoulos were $0 and $316 for the

years ended December 31 2009 and 2010 respec

tively and are included under due from related

companies in the accompanying consolidated bal

ance sheets

The amounts due from other companies owned

Mr Dimitris Melisanidis or his relatives were $0 and

$585 tor the years ended December 31 2009 and

2010 respectively and are included under due

from related companies in the accompanying con

solidated balance sheets

The amounts due to other companies owned Mr

Dimitris Melisanidis or his relatives were $30 and

$572 tor the years ended December 31 2009 and

2010 respectively and are included under other

payables to related companies in the accompary

ing consolidated balance sheets

INVENTORIES

The amounts shown in the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets are analyzed as follows

December 31

2009 2010

He tor sale

Marine Fuel

Marine Gas Gil

129767

8921

124316

27726

136668 152042

Held for consumption

Marine fuel

Lubricants

Stores

Vctcals

263

959

24

161

1739

995

24

218

1427 2976

Total 140115 155018

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The amounts in the accompanying consolidated bal

ance sheets are analyzed as follows

Oecember 31

2009 2010

Insurance prepaid 223 386

VAT receivable 12854 17313

Dther prepayments 11399 8451

Total 24.476 26150

ADVANCES FOR VESSELS UNDER

CONSTRUCTION AND ACOUISITIONS

On May 25 2007 as amended th Company signed

five separate shipbuilding contracts with Fulian for five

4600 dwt double skin double bottom product oil

tankers Hull Numbers DN-3800 11 to 15 The con

struction price of each contract is $9590 which is pay

able in advance 22c upon steel-cutting 19c

upon keel-laying 12c upon launching and 39c upon

delivery and acceptance The Hull Numbers DN 3800

11 to DN 3800 13 have been delivered as of December

31 2010

On February 28 2008 and in connection with the call

option agreement with the Oingdao Hyundai Ship

building Co Ltd Oingdao Hyundai the Company

signed four separate shipbuilding contracts with

Oingdao Hyundai for four 5500 dwt double skin dou

ble bottom product oil tankers Hull Numbers OHS 225

to 228 The construction price of each contract is

$10600 which is payable 30c in advance 20c upon

steel cutting 20c upon keel-laying 20c upon launch

ing and 1000 upon delivery and acceptance

On February 2009 and in connection with the agree

ment with the Fujian Southeast Shipyard Fulian
which was signed on May 25 2007 as amended the

Company signed five separate contracts with an engi

neering firm for the design building supervision rep

resentation procurement of machineries and supplies

and turn key delivery of the five 4600 dwt product oil

tankers Hull Numbers DN 3800 11 to 15 The price

of each such contract is $1150 of which 1500 is pay
able upon keel-laying 40c is payable upon launching

and 45c is payable upon delivery and acceptance

The Hull Numbers DN 3800 11 to DN 3800 13 have

been delivered as ot December 31 2010
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On February 2009 and in connection with the call

option agreement with the Oingdao Hyundai Ship

building Co Ltd Oingdao Hyundai which was

signed on February 28 2008 the Oompany signed

tour separate contracts with an engineering firm for

the design building supervision representation pro

curement of machineries and supplies and turn key

delivery of the four 5500 dwt product oil tankers Hull

Numbers OHS 225 to 228 The price ot each such

contract is $1600 of which 15% is payable upon keel-

laying 40c is payable upon launching and 45% is

payable upon delivery and acceptance

On June 25 2009 the Companys acquired subsid

iary Seatra BVBA part of the Verbeke business had

signed along with the other 50% third party co owner

Tote

Interest on the advanceo paid by the Cunipwny in

respect of these contracts is computed at the weighted

average borrowing cost of the Company for the dura

tion of the construction period and capitalized in

advances for vessels under construction on the

accompanying balance sheets Total interest capital

ized for the years ended December 31 2008 2009

and 2010 was $2868 $1774 and $901 respectively

During the years ended December 31 2009 and 2010

the movement of the account advances for vessels

under rnnctrurtinn nd anquisition wa as followe

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2010

Balance at beginning of period 113564 136494

Advances tor vessels under

construction and related costs 85617 61967

Advances for secondhand

vessel acquisitions 29814 26576

Vessels delivered 92501 147179

Balance at end of period 136494 77858

an agreement with the Erlenbacher Schiffswerft ship

yard for the construction of 2500 dwt motor tanker

hull number NB 1166 The construction price of the

contract is 3090000 and is payable with the prog

ress of the construction As of December 31 2010 the

amount of the contract has been fully repaid however

the vessel is expected to be delivered in the second

quarter ot 2011

The amounts shown in the accompanying consoli

dated balance sheets include milestone payments

relating to the shipbuilding and engineering contracts

and any material related expenses incurred during the

construction periods capitalized in accordance with

the accounting policy discussed in Note

2011 10789 10789 1152 11941

2011 10740 6485 526 7011

2011 10740 6485 485 6970

2011 11982 11982 1293 13275

2011 12200 10420 770 11190

2011 12200 10420 528 10948

2011 12200 10420 515 10935

2011 5563 5563 25 5588

86414 72564 5294 77858

As uf December 31 2010 the remdining ubligations

under the construction and supervision contracts

which are payable within 2011 are $13850

ADVAN DES FOR OTHER FIXED ASSETS

UNDER CONSTRUCTION

Fujairah In land Storage Facility In July 2010 the

Company assumed 25 year terminal lease agree

ment from related party which will be automatically

renewed for an additional 25 years with the Munic

ipality of Fujairah and to build an in land storage facil

ity in the United Arab Emirates with total estimated

costs ot $105000 The Company is expected to com

plete the construction of the now facility until the end

of year 2013 and the payment of the contractual

amounts will be made with the progress of the con

struction As of December 31 2010 the Company has

paid advances for construction ot the in land storage

facility amounting to $11630 The contractual obliga

tions arising trom signed contracts relating to this prol

ect after December 31 2010 are $93195

As of December 31 2010 the account advances for vessels under construction and acquisitions is analyzed

as follows

Year of
December 31 2010

Expected Contract Contract Capitalized

Vessel Name Delivery Amount Fayments Costs Total

Fupan Shipyard

DN 3800 13

DN 3800 14

DN 3800 15

Cingdao Hyundai Shipyard

DHS 225

DHS 226

OHS 227

OHS 228

NB 1166

vessei dstvered 2010 but as of December 31 2010 was not posifwned and operatronai
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VESSELS

The amounts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are analyzed as follows

Net

Vessel Accumulated Book

Cost Depreciation Value

Balance December 31 2008 260741 26606 234135
Vessels acquired and delivered 92501 92501

Vessels sold 31327 1051 30276
Depreciation tar the year 16438 16438

Balance December 31 2009 321915 41993 279922

Vessels acquired and delivered 169359 169359

Vessels said 11785 8368 3417
Depreciation for the year 20543 20543

Balance December 31 2010 479489 54168 425321

On January 14 2010 the Company signed memo greater than what would have been paid by third

randum of agreement with third party seller far the party on an arms length basis far the same vessel at

purchase of Norwegian-flagged 84040 dwt built in the time it entered into the memorandum of

1990 double hull bunkering tanker the Difka Chaser agreement

renamed Aeaios which became operational as

floating storage facility in the Companys service cen

ter in Gibraltar The purchase price of the vessel was

$6500 which was fully paid on the delivery of the

vessel an February 22 2010 The total capitalized cost

of this asset of $9396 includes $2896 of amounts

which were not included in the contract price of the

vessel but which were material costs incurred upon

On April 30 2010 the Company said the vessel

Aegean Pride to an unaffiliated third party purchaser

far an aggregate price of $1900 The loss on sale

of $1542 was calculated as the sale price less the

carrying value of the vessel of $2654 related sales

expenses of $25 and the carrying value of unamor

tized drydocking costs of $763

acquisition This loss is included under the gain/ioss an sale of

On February 25 2010 the Companys subsidiary

Aegean Cstria Maritime Company entered into an

vessel in the consolidated statements of income for

the year ended December 31 2010

agreement to purchase related company Aegean On September 15 2010 the Company sold the vessel

Gas Maritime Company which was owned and con- Aegean Force to an unaffiliated third-party purchaser

trailed by members of the family of Mr Dimitris for an aggregate price of $1100 The gain on sale of

Melisanidis Aegean Gas Maritime Companys only $2 was calculated as the sale price less the carrying

asset is the vessel Mediterranean 20000 dwt dou value of the vessel at $763 related sales expenses

ble hull bunkering barge which will be used by the ot $55 and the carrying value of unamortized dry

Company as floating storage facility The Company docking casts of $280 This gain is included under

accounted for the transaction as an asset acquisition the gain/Ioss an the sale of vessels net in the can

The purchase price of the vessel was $17180 salidated statement of income far the year ended

Disinterested members of the Companys board of December 31 2010

directors determined that the purchase price was no

During the year ended December 31 2009 the Company took deliveries of the following vessels

Vessel Name
Date at Year Size Total Cast

Gperatian Built dwt Capitalized

Kalymnas 06/12/2009 2009 6283 11995

Aegean Champion 05/27/2009 1991 23400 12810

Aegean Star 10/28/2009 1980 11520 8194

Kerkyra 10/07/2009 2009 6290 12593
Cstria Nil 2009 2454 16583

Aegean Ace 05/18/2009 j992 1615 3630
Naxas 01/29/2009 2009 4600 8844
Ithaki 10/03/2009 2009 6272 12043

PT 22 08/20/2009 2001 507 4777

Fujairah Launch 05/07/2009 1991 41 667

Ghana Launch 10/01/2009 2003 375

92501
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On January 14 2010 the Companys subsidiary

Aegean Caribbean Holdings entered into an agree

ment to purchase related company Caribbean

Renewable Energy Sources CRES which was owned

and controlled by members of the family of Mr Dimitris

Melisanidis CRES owns property in Jamaica that is

intended to be used as land based storage tacility

The Company accounted for the transaction as an

asset acquisition The purchase price for the property

was $9800 Disinterested members of the Companys
board of directors determined that the purchase price

was no greater than what would have been paid by

third party on an arms length basis for the same

vessel at the time it entered into tie memorandum

of agreement

Vessel Name

For the year ended December 31 2010 the Company took deliveries of the following vessels

Date ot Year Size Total Cost

Operation Built dwt Capitalized

Andres 03/17/2010 2010 4605 11435

Dilos 07/22/2010 2010 4593 11914

Ketalenia 01/04/2010 2009 6272 12409

Paxei 01/23/2010 2009 6310 12364

Zalcynthes 03/18/2010 2010 6303 12289

Letkas 04/24/2010 2010 6321 12279

Kythira 06/11/2010 2010 6314 12321

Nisyres 07/27/2010 2010 6312 11722

Karpathes 09/23/2010 2010 6247 11 945

Leros 11/06/2010 2010 6311 11925

Aeoles 05/07/2010 1990 84040 9396

Mediterranean 02/28/2010 1982 19894 17180

Celerade 04/01/2010 2004 5088 9688

Vigo 04/01/2010 1971 1319 538

Elbe 04/01/2010 1962 542 282

Ellen 04/01/2010 1971 1439 471

Blender 04/01/2010 1963 736 235

WillemSR 04/01/2010 2006 3180 740

Steidamm 04/01/2010 1972 1634 875

Tapuit 04/01/2010 1971 2500 336

Texas 04/01/2010 2003 4165 9015

169359

Cost of vessels at December 31 2008 2009 and As ot December 31 2010 all of the Company opera

2010 includes $27906 $35575 and $57268 respec tional vessels except for the Vera Hope Aegean Star

tively of amounts not included in the contract price of Mediterranean FT 25 FT 36 FT 22 and the vessels

the vessels but which were material expenses incurred owned by the Verbeke business described in Note

upon acquisition and are capitalized in accordance were mortgaged under the Companys various debt

with the accounting policy discussed in Note agreements

10 OTHER FIXED ASSETS

The amounts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are analyzed as follows

Land Buildings Other Total

Cest December 31 2009

Additiens

Disposals

9036

1008

2451

1590

1310

508

2598

12797

508

Cost December 31 2010 9036 3459 2392 14887

Accumulated depreciatien December 31 2009

Depreciation expense

Disposals

159

121

792

428

124

951

549

124

Accumulated depreciation December 31 2010 280 1096 1376

Net beek value December 31 2009 849 798 1647

Net book value December 31 2010 9036 3179 1296 13511
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11 DEFERRED CHARGES

The amounts in the accompanying consolidated bal

ance sheets are analyzed as follows

TotalDrydocking

Balance

December 31 2008

Additions

Disposals

Amortization tor

the year

11 485

7055

69

4574

955

1200

676

12440

8.255

69

5250

Balance

Deoember 31 2009 13897 1479 15376

Additiurs

Disposals

Amortization tor

the year

987

1043

5805

411

861

10398

1043

6666

Balance

December 31 2010 17036 1029 18065

The amortization for drydocking costs is separately

reflected in the accompanying consolidated state

ments of income The amortization of financing costs

is included in interest and finance costs in the accom

panying consolidated statements of income

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company has identified finite-lived intangible

assets associated with concession agreements acquired

with the purchase of the Fortland subsidiary and the

Las Falmas site and non compete covenant identi

fied at the purchase price allocation of the Verbeke

business The values recorded have been recognized

at the date of the acquisition and are amortized on

straight line basis and over their useful life

The amounts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are analyzed as follows

Cor cession Agreements

Port and Las Palmas Non Compete

Port Port Covenant Total

Amount acquired
7772 10525

Accumu ated amortization as per Deoember 31 2009 677

3365 21662

677

2010 989 301 388 1678

NBV as per Deoember 31 2009 7095 7095

2010 6783 10224 2977 19984

Amortization schedule 2011 312 601 517 1430

2012 312 601 517 1430

2013 312 601 517 1430

2014 312 601 517 1430

2015 312 601 517 1430

Ihereatter 5223 7219 392 12834

13 SHCRT TERM BCRRCWINGS
The amounts comprising short term debt in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet are analyzed

as tollows

December 31

2009 2010

Loan
Facility

Revolving overdratt credit tacility dated 0310112010 1600
Senior secured revolving credit tacility dated 1111212010 50000
Trade oredit

facility dated 1111912010 60060

Revolving credit tacility dated 1012912010 52229

Revolving credit tacility dated 1011212010 40000

Revolving credit tacility dated 06/07/2010 2995
Receivab es credit and assignment agreement 09/21/2010 50000

Total short term borrowings 50000 206884

Financing

Costs
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aOn March 11 2008 the Company entered into

one year annually-renewable revolving overdratt

credit facility with Greek bank for an amount of

$20000 The facility is secured by first priority

mortgage over the vessels Vera Sara and Hope
and bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.50c Further

more the credit facility contains financial covenants

requiring the Company to ensure that adjusted

consolidated book net worth as defined not be

fess than $175000 consolidated leverage ratio

as defined not to exceed 65 to one and Ui con

solidated liquid funds as defined not be less than

$25000

Cn April 23 2009 the Company renewed retroac

tively from March 11 2009 for period of one year

until March 11 2010 the revolving overdraft facility

with Greek bank for an amount of $20000 which

was signed on March 11 2008 The renewed facil

ity bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.50c for the first

$10000 and LIBOR plus 5000 for the remaining

amount All other terms and conditions remain the

same as referred above

On March 2010 the Company renewed the exist

ing revolving overdraft credit tacility with Creek

bank until March 15 2011 and amended to increase

the amount to $30000 adding to the existing secu

rifles the vessels Aegean Ace Aegean Star and

Aegean Champion The renewed facility bears

interest at LIBOR plus 2.50c for the first $10000

borrowed and LIBOR plus 3.50c for additional

amounts outstanding As of December 31 2009

and 2010 the Company had an outstanding bal

ance of $0 and $1600 respectively

bOr September 17 2000 the Company entered info

an annually renewable senior secured revolving

credit facility with Greek bank for an amount of

$50000 The facility is secured by among other

things the Companys receivables and corporate

guarantee and bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.50c

The credit facility contains certain covenants and

undertakings that require among other things that

the Company maintain its listing on the New York

Stock Exchange the net equity base will not be

less than $175000 the interest coverage ratio will

not be less than 1.3-to one the total liabilities to

total assets will not exceed 65c and the Company
maintain additional free liquidity of $25000 at the

end of each calendar month and an average mini

mum daily free liquidity of $10000

On November 12 2010 this facility was committed

by the bank until September 30 2011 with the

terms accepted by the Company on February

2011 On this date the Company amended the

renewed facility to bear interest at LIBOR plus

3.50% require the monthly average consolidated

liquid funds to exceed $30000 and require the

conso dated leveracie ratio under the corporate

guarantee to be higher than 0.75c

As of December 31 2009 and 2010 the Company
had an outstanding balance of $50000 and $0

respectively

On November 19 2009 the Company entered into

an uncommitted trade credit facility with an inter

national commercial lender The trade credit
facility

is for up to $100000 with sublimit in an amount

of $20000 for short-term transit and storage

fiancing The trade credit facility had one year

term and was silently renewed on its anniversary on

the same terms and conditions until the execution

of new facility
that is currently under negotiation

The availability of any letters of credit overdrafts or

cash advances under the trade credit facility is

subject to the lenders discretion The facility bears

interest at rate of the lenders cost of funds plus

for overdrafts The facility is guaranteed by

the Company and is secured by among other

things the Companys assigned receivables and

fuel oil and gas oil stored or to be stored in stor

age facility acceptable to the lender and pledged

in its favor Under the trade credit facility the maxi

mum credit terms given to any individual counter

party may be 45 days from the delivery of the

products the inventories may only be financed up

to 30 days from the date such inventories are deliv

ered to the storage facility and the product to be

stored and in transit may be financed up to 10 cal

endar days from the date of the bill of lading The

trade credit facility contains covenants requiring

among other things that AMPs minimum total net

equity is at least $80000 and has minimum cash

collateral of $5000 at all times the Company main

tains its listing on the New York Stock Exchange

has total nct equity not less than $180000 and has

minimum current ratio of 1.15 with minimum

working capital of $50000 As of December 31

2009 and 2010 the Company had an outstanding

balance of $0 and $60060 respectively

dOn April 2010 in connection with the Companys

acquisition of the Verbeke Business the Company
has assumed an overdraft facility with Belgian

bank in amount of up to $45000 The facility bears

interest at 9.00c As of December 31 2009 and 2010

the Company had an outstanding balance of $0

and $52229 of which 13000000 respectively

On April 27 2010 the Company through its subsid

iary Verbeke Bunkering entered into an overdraft

facility with Belgian bank for an amount of up to

$45000 and 500000 The facility bears interest at

Aegean Marine Petroieum Network 2010 Annual Report 57



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Expressed in thousands ot U.S dollars except share and per share data unless otherwise stated

8.30% As of December 31 2009 and 2010 the

Company had an outstanding balance of $0 and

$4fl000 respectively

In October 2010 the credit lines of both facilities

under and of the Companys subsidiary

Verbeke Bunkering with the Belgian banks were

increased up to $55000 and $70000 plus

500000 respectively The facilities are secured

by the Company and drawdowns on the facilities

are limited to maximum of 90c of the accounts

receivable accepted by the banks and credit

insured equally shared between the Belgian

banks The $55000 facility bears interest at

EURIBOR plus 200c tor drawdowns in Euros and

rate of 900% for other credit advances The

$70000 and 500000 facility bears interest at

LIBOR plus 2.00% for drawdowns in dollars

and LIBOR plus 2.50% for other credit advances

On June 2010 the Companys subsidiary AMP
entered into an uncommitted revolving credit facility

with an international commercial lender for an

amount up to $100000 and one year term The

availability of any letters of credit overdrafts or

cash advances under the revolving credit facility

is subject to the lenders discretion The facility

contains certain covenants and undertakings that

require among other things that the Company

maintains minimum working capital of $75000

minimum equity of $200000 and minimum current

ratio of 1.15

The availability of any letters of credit overdrafts

or cash advances under the credit facility is subject

tn the lenders disrretinn The fecility beers interest

at rate of the lenders cost of funds plus 2.0c

for overdrafts The facility is guaranteed by the

Company and is secured by among other things

the assignment of and pledge ot receivables

and fuel oil and gas oil stored or to be stored in

storage facility acceptable to the lender As of

December 31 2009 and 2010 the Company had

an outstanding balance ot $0 and $2995

respectively

gOn September 21 2010 the Company entered into

receivables credit and assignment agreement

with an international bank for an amount up to

$50000 and one-year term The facility bears

interest at LIBOR plus 2.00c The facility contains

covenants requiring among other things that the

minimum current ratio is 115 As of December 31

2009 and 2010 the Company had an outstanding

balance of $0 and $50000 respectively

Total interest incurred on short-term borrowings for

the years ended December 31 2008 2009 and

2010 amounted to $7495 $930 and $3639 Note

17 respectively and is included in interest and

finance costs in the accompanying consolidated

statements of income During the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2010 the weighted aver

age interest rate including the margin was 3.19%

and 2.72% respectively

As of December 31 2010 the Company had $171393 available undrawn amount under its short term loan

agreements to finance working capital requirements

14 LONG TERM DEBT

The amounts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are analyzed as follows

December 31

Borrowerfs 2009 2010

fa Seritos Kithnos Santorini Paros Naxos 32 140 29740

fb Milos Amorgos Kimolos Syros Mykonos 28220 25420

Eton Benmore and Ingram 18384 23961

Tasman and Santon 13817 16047

fe Kerkyra Ithaki Ketalonia Paxoi Zakynthos Lefkas Kythira 48865 59658

Andros Dilos los Sifnos Tinos 19811 34228

fg Kassos Tilos Halki Symi 25300 31970

fh Aegean Ill VIII XII 12500 10500

Blatoma 2844

fi Verbeke Bunkering 3446

fk Overdraft facility under senior secured credit facility dated 03/16/200911 152000 180000

Total 351037 417814

Less Current portion f13147 74896

Long term portion 337 890 342918
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On August 30 2005 as amended Serifos Kithnos

Santorini Faros and Naxos as co borrowers jointly

and severally entered infn syndicated secured

term loan with an international bank for an amount

of $35500 to partially finance the construction

costs of vessels Serifos Kithnos Santorini Paros

Naxos respectively five tranches of $7100 each

Each tranche is available in seven advances as

defined in the loan agreement Each tranche is

repayable in 40 consecutive quarterly installments

with the first 30 being in the amount of $120 each

and the remaining 10 being in the amount of $110

each plus balloon payment of $2400 payable

with the lest installn uent The first
ii

istellu vu it uf eeuh

tranche is repayable three months atter the date of

drawdown of the respective delivery advance

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus i.40 during

each vessels pre delivery period and at LIBOR

plus 1.30% during each vessels post delivery

period During the years ended December 31

2008 2009 and 2010 the weighted average inter

est rate including the margin was 4.42% 2.22%

and 1.64% respectively while at December 31

2009 and 2n10 the interest rate including the mar

gin was 1.5600 and 1.59c respectively As of

December 31 2009 and 2010 the outstanding

balance of the loan was $32140 and $29740

respectively

The loan agreement contains financial covenants

requiring the Company to ensure that book net

worth shall not be less than $100000 that the ratio

of total liabilities to total assets shall not exceed

0.65 to one that the current ratio shall not be less

than 1.25 to one and that cash and cash equiva

lents exceed 5000 of the current portion of long

term debt

bOn February 10 2006 Milos Amorgos Kimolos

Syros and Mykonos as co borrowers jointly and

severally entered into secured term loan with an

international bank tor an amount of $33400 to par

tially finance the construction costs of vessels

Milos Amorgos Kimolos Syros Mykonos respec

tively tive tranches of $6680 each Each tranche

is available in four advances as defined in the loan

agreement Each tranche is repayable in 48 con

secutive quarterly installments with the first 47

being in the amount of $140 each and the last

installment being in the amount of $100 The first

installment of each tranche is repayable three

months after the date ot drawdown of the respec

tive delivery advance

On December 19 2006 this facility was refinanced

by term loan with identical terms and conditions

with the same bank under the 2108 Seninr Secured

Credit Facility

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.150o plus

additional compliance costs During the years

ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 the

weighted average interest rate including the mar

gin was 3.97% 1.61c and 1.44c respectively

while at December 31 2009 and 2010 the interest

rate including the margin was 1.42% and 1.40c

respectively As of December 31 2009 and 2010

the outstanding balance of the loan was $28220

and $25420 respectively

The loan agreement contains financial covenants

requiring the Company to ensure that market value

adjusted net worth shall not be less than $150000

that minimum liquidity shall not less than $25000
that the ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall

not exceed 0.65 to one

On October 25 2006 Eton Benmore and Ingram

as co borrowers jointly and severally entered into

syndicated secured term ioan with an international

bank tor an amount of $26250 to partially finance

the construction costs of vessels Fatmos Nisyros

Karpathos three tranches of $8750 each Each

tranche is available in five advances as defined in

the loan agreement Each tranche is repayable in

40 consecutive quarterly installments in the amount

of $125 each plus balloon payment of $3750

payable together with the last installment The first

installment of each tranche is repayable three

months after the date of drawdown of the respec

five delivery advance

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.30c before

delivery of each vessel and at LIBOR plus 1i875

after such vessels delivery During the years ended

December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 the weighted

average interest rate including the margin was

4.60% 1.99c and 1.59c respectively while at

December 31 2009 and 2010 the interest rate

including the margin was 1.38% and 1.77c

respectively As of December 31 2009 and 2010

the outstanding balance of the loan was $18384

and $23961 respectively

The loan agreement contains financial covenants

requiring the Company to ensure that book net

worth shall not be less than $100000 that the ratio

of total liabilities to total assets shall not exceed

0.65 to one that the current ratio shall not be less

than 1.25-to-one
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dOn October 27 2006 Tasman and Santon as cc

borrowers jointly and severally entered into

secured term loan with Greek bank tor an amount

ot $17600 to partially tinance the construction

costs of vessels Kalymnos and two tranches

ot $8800 each Each tranche is available in five

advances as detined in the loan agreement Each

tranche is repayable in 40 consecutive quarterly

installments in the amount of $154 each plus bal

loon payment of $2640 payable together with the

last installment The first installment ot each tranche

is repayable three months after the date ot delivery

ot the respective vessel

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 11500 on the

principal amount repayable in quarterly installments

for each tranche $6160 and at LIBOR plus 25c

on the principal amount repayable in balloon pay

ment tor each tranche $2640 Ouring the years

ended Oecember 31 2008 2009 and 2010 the

weighted average interest rate including the mar

gin was 4.60c 69% and 1.46 respectively

while at Oecember 31 2009 and 2010 the interest

rate including the margin was 1.41c and 1.46c

respectively As at December 31 2000 and 2010

the outstanding balance of the loan was $13817

and $16047 respectively

eOn October 30 2006 Kerkyra Ithaki Kefalonia

Paxol Zakynthos Lefkas and Kythira as cc

borrowers jointly and severally entered into syn

dicated secured term loan with an international

bank for an amount of $64750 to partially finance

the construction costs of vessels Kerkyra Ithaki

Kefalonia Raxol Zakynthos Lefkas and Kythira

tsevnn trannhes nt $9290 eanh Fach trannhe is

available in five advances as defined in the loan

agreement Each tranche is repayable in 40 con

secutive quarterly installments in the amount of

$125 each plus balloon payment of $4250 pay

able together with the last installment The tirst

installment of each tranche is repayable three

months after the date of drawdown of the respec

tive delivery advance

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.15c before

delivery of each vessel and at LIBOR plus 1.050o

after such vessels delivery During the years ended

December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 the weighted

average interest rate including the margin was

4.22c 1.96c and 1.71 respectively while at

December 31 2009 and 2010 the interest rate

including the margin was 34c and 1.76c

respectively As of December 31 2009 and 2010

the outstanding balance of the loan was $48865

and $59658 respectively

The loan agreement contains financial covenants

requiring the Oompany to ensure that book net

worth shall not be less than $100000 that the ratio

of total liabilities to total assets shall not exceed

0.65 to one that the current ratio shall not be less

than 1.25 to one and that cash and cash equiva

lents exceed 500o of all debts and interest becom

ing due in the next 12 month period excluding

working capital facilities and balloons

On July 2007 Andros Dilos los Sifnos and

Tinos as cc borrowers jointly and severally entered

into syndicated secured term loan with an interna

tional bank tor an amount of $51560 to partially

finance the construction costs of vessels DN 3800-

11 DN-3800 12 DN 3800 13 DN 3800 14 and

DN 3800-15 five tranches of $7512 each Each

tranche is available in advances as defined in the

loan agreement Each tranche is repayable in 40

consecutive quarterly installments in the amount of

$187 each The first installment ot each tranche is

repayable three months after the date of drawdown

of the respective delivery advance

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 0.90c before

delivery of each vessel and at LIBOR plus 0.85c

after such vessels delivery

On September 12 2008 the Oompany amended

the secured term loan which had entered into on

July 2007 for an amount ot $37560 with an

international bank to partially finance the construc

tion cost of vessels DN 3800 11 DN 3800 12

DN 3800-13 DN 3800 14 and DN 3800-15 This

supplemental agreement increases the loan to an

amount of $43160 The loan is available in five

tranches ot $8632 each Each tranche is repay

able in 40 consecutive quarterly installments of

$216 each The first installment of each tranche is

repayable three months after the date of drawdown

of the final advance

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.00c The

loan is collateralized by first priority mortgage

over each of the vessels

During the years ended December 31 2008 2009

and 2010 the weighted average interest rate

including the margin was 4.07c 1.86% and

1.43c respectively while at December 31 2009

and 2010 the interest rate including the margin

was 1.25c and 1.58c respectively As of Decem

ber 31 2009 and 2010 the outstanding balance of

the loan was $19811 and $34228 respectively

The loan agreement contains financial covenants

requiring the Oompany to ensure that market value

adjusted net worth shall not be less than $150000

that minimum liquidity shall not be less than
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$25000 held with the lender at the end of eaoh

month with average minimum daily free liquidity of

$10000 that the ratio nf total liabilities to total

assets shall not exoeed 0.65-to-one

gOn April 24 2008 Kassos Tilos Symi and Halki

as co borrowers jointly and severally entered into

syndioated seoured term loan with an international

bank for an amount of $38800 to partially finanoe

the oonstruction costs of the vessels OHS 225

OHS 226 OHS 227 and OHS-228 tour tranches of

$9700 each Each tranche is available in two

advances as defined in the loan agreement Each

tranche is repayable in 40 equal consecutive quar

terly installments plus balloon payment of $4300

payable with the last installment The first install

ment of each tranche is repayable three months

after the date of drawdown ot the respective deliv

ery advance The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus

1.1500 and is secured by the first priority mortgage

on the five vessels

During the years ended December 31 2008 2009

and 2010 the weighted average interest rate

including the margin was 3.84c 2.39c and

1.83c respectively while at December 31 2009

and 2010 the interest rate including the margin

was 1.75c and 1.71c respectively As of December

31 2009 and 2010 the outstanding balance of the

loan was $25300 and $31970 respectively

The loan agreement contains financial covenants

requiring the Company to ensure that book net

worth shall not be less than $175000 that the ratio

of total liabilities to total assets shall not exceed

0.65-to-one that the current ratio shall not be less

than 1.25-to one and that cash and cash equiva

lents exceed 50c of all debts and interest becom

ing due in the next 12 month period excluding

working capital facilities and balloons

hOn July 2008 the Company entered into

secured term loan facility with Greek bank for an

amount of $15000 The facility is collateralized by

first priority mortgage over the vessels Aegean Ill

Aegean VIII and Aegean XII and bears interest at

LIBOR plus 1.25% The loan is repayable in 20

equal consecutive quarterly installments plus bal

loon payment of $5000 payable with the last

installment

During the year ended December 31 2008 2009

and 2010 the weighted average interest rate

including the margin was 3.78c 2.46c and

B9 respectively while at December 31 2009

and 2010 the interest rate including the margin

was 1.75c and 1.84c respectively As of Decem

ber 31 2009 and 2010 the outstanding balance of

the loan was $12 500 and $10500 respectively

The loan agreement contains financial covenants

requiring the Company to ensure that market value

adlusted net worth shall not be lss than $175000

that minimum liquidity shall not less than $25000

that the ratio of total liabilities to total assets shall

not exceed 0.65-to-one

On April 2010 the Company increased its long

term debt due to the Verbeke Business acquisition

by loan agreement of an amount of 3740000
with Belgian bank dated on March 22 2004 to

finance the construction of its vessel Texas The

interest rate is at 4.36c was renewed on April

2009 and is renewable every five years As of

December 31 2010 the outstanding balance under

this
facility was $2844 2146000

On April 2010 the Company increased its long

term debt due to the Verbeke Bunkering acquisition

by loan agreement of an amount of 4000000
with Belgian bank dated on February 25 2009

The facility bears interest of EURIBOR plus 2.5c

During the year ended December 31 2010 and

after the acquisition date of the Verbeke Business

the weighted average interest rate including the

margin was 3.5100 while at December 31 2010

the interest rate including the margin was 3.51c

As of December 31 2010 the outstanding balance

under this facility was $3446 2600000

On March 16 2009 the Company renewed retro

actively from February 2009 for period of two

years until January 30 2011 the senior secured

syndicated revolving guarantee and letter of credit

facility that was signed on September 30 2008

The amount of the facility was up to $1000000 for

working capital and general corporate purposes

The renewed facility had committed amount of up

to $250000 consisting of guarantee and/or letter

of credit line in an amount of up to $147500 and

cash advance limit in an amount of up to $208000

on March 31 2009 The facility bears interest at

LIBOR plus 2.50c while documentary and standby

letters of credit are subject to commissions of

0.75c and 1.50c respectively The loan agree

mont contains financial covenants requiring the

Company to ensure that book net worth shall not be

less than $175000 that minimum liquidity shall not

be less than $25000 held with the lender at the

end of each month with average minimum daily free

liquidity of $10000 that the ratio of total liabilities to

total assets shall not exceed 0.65 to one and that

the Companys interest coverage ratio is always

higher than 1.3 As of December01 2010 the out

standing balance of the loan was $180000

$55000 of which have been reclassified to current

portion since the renewal of the above agreement

for an additional two year period committed on
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March 2011 and described in the subsequent

events has committed amount ot up to $125000

As ot December 31 2010 the outstanding vessel

financing loans are generally collateralized as follows

First priority assignment of the shipbuilding con

tracts and tirst priority mortgages over the vessels

when completed

Assignments of insurance and earnings of the

mortgaged vessels when completed

An undertaking from the vessels manager

The vessel-financing loan agreements contain ship

finance covenants including rectrictinns as tn changes

in management and ownership of the vessels addi

tional indebtedness and mortgaging of vessels without

the banks prior consent as well as minimum require

ments regarding the ratio of the market value of the

relevant vessel to the outstanding loan amount and

the ratio of the insured amount of the relevant vessel to

the outstanding loan amount In addition the borrow

ing companies and/or their managers must maintain

working capital accounts with the lending banks
as defined in the loan agreements Furthermore the

vesswl-uwiiing subbididry cuiriparnes are not permit

ted to pay any dividends without the lenders prior

consent The vessel owning subsidiary companies

with outstanding loans had restricted net assets

amounting to $5j54 and $19768 as of December

31 2009 and 2010 respectively

As of December 31 2010 all otthe Companys vessels

under construction as well as newly completed yes

sels having total carrying value of $343492 have

been provided as collateral to secure the long term

debt discussed above

Total interest incurred on long-term debt tor the years

ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 amounted

to $5384 $8366 and $9011 respectively Note 17
and is included in interest and finance costs in the

accompanying consolidated statements of income

Accrued interest expense on long term debt as ot

December 31 2009 and 2010 amounted to $318 and

$831 respectively and is included in accrued and

other current liabilities in the accompanying consoli

dated balance sheets

The total amount available under the Companys long

term debt agreements was $21481 as of December

31 2010

As of December 31 2010 the Company was in com

pliance with all financial covenants on all its loans

The annual principal payments required to be made

atter December 31 2010 are as follows

2011 74896
2012 20134
2013 149628

2014 17333
2015 17028

2016 and thereatter 138795

417814

15 CCMMITMENTS AND CCNTINGENCIES

Long term Supply Contracts On December

2uu4 the Company signed an eight year Fuel

Purchase Agreement with government retinery in

Jamaica for the supply of mainly MFO and MOO at

price equal to average FLATTS prices plus

margin The contract stipulates that the Company
and refinery are not required to transact for more

than maximum quantity of marine fuel per month

however by mutual agreement the maximum quan

tity per month may be revised upwards Invoices

become due thirty calendar days from the date of

dehvery Interest on overdue payments accrues at

rate equal to the local overdraft rate in Jamaica

This agreement expires on December 31 2012

On April 2005 the Company signed ten-year

Marine Fuel Supply Service Agreement with the

Greek Subcontractor refer to Note

bLease Commitments The Company leases certain

property under operating leases which require

the Company to pay maintenance insurance and

other expenses in addition to annual rentals The

minimum annual payments under all nnnc.ancel

able operating leases at December 31 2010 are

as follows

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Thereafter

Total minimum annual payments under all

noncancelable operating leases 314344

Rent expense under operating leases was $1108

$1237 and $1897 for the years ended December 31

2008 2009 and 2010 respectively

7360

13163

13160

13097

13097

254467
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Standby Letters of Credit In the normal oourse of

business for certain suppliers under certain long

term supply rnntrarts under certain lnng-trm

construction contracts the Company is required to

post standby letters of credit in order to secure

lines of credit As of December 31 2010 the total

outstanding standby letters of credit amounted to

$141931 The Company has not defaulted on pay

ment of any of its accounts payable so as to cause

any of the issuers of the standby letters of credit to

settle the Companys accounts payable on the

Companys behalf All the standby letters of credit

expire during 2011 The Company expects to extend

the validity date of these instruments ihroughout

the duration of the Companys contractual or oper

ating relationships with the respective suppliers

Letters of Guarantee Under the Singapore law the

Company is are required to issue letters of guar

antee for payroll taxes of crew members during

their employment The guarantee extends for the

duration of the employment and the Company is

required to pay only if the crew member does not

meet individual tax obligations The Company cur

rently does not believe it will be required to make

payment under these guarantees and accord

ingly has not recorded any liability
The maximum

amount the Company could be required to pay

as of December 31 2010 is $582 or SIN$751

which is maintained in fixed deposits and pre

sented in the prepayments and other current assets

in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Environmental and Other Liabilities The Company

accrues tor the cost of environmental liabilities

when management becomes aware that liability

is probable and is able to reasonably estimate the

Companys exposure Currently management is

not aware of any such claims or contingent liabili

ties for which provision should be established in

the accompanying consolidated financial state

ments The Companys Protection and Indemnity

Pl insurance policies cover third party liability

and other expenses related to injury or death of

crew passengers and other third parties loss or

damage of cargo claims arising from collisions

with other vessels damage to other third party

property and pollution arising from oil or other sub

stances The Companys coverage under the Pl
insurance policies except for pollution are unlim

ited Coverage for pollution is $1 billion per vessel

per incident

Legal Matters In November 2005 an unrelated

party filed declaratory action against one of the

Cmpany nuboidiariws bwfnrw th First lnntanrw

Court of Piraeus Greece The plaintiff asserted that

he was instrumental in the negotiation of the

Companys eight year Fuel Purchase Agreement

with government refinery in Jamaica and sought

judicial affirmation of his alleged contractual right

to receive commission of $1.00 per metric ton

over the term of the contract In December 2008

the First Instance Court of Piraeus dismissed the

plaintiffs action While the plaintiffs action was

pending in Greece the plaintiff
commenced new

action involving the same cause uf action befure

the Commercial Court of Paris France which dis

missed that action in June 2009 Plaintiffs appeal

of the dismissal was denied by the Paris Court of

Appeal in February 2010 The Company does not

believe that the outcome of this lawsuit will have

material effect on the Company

In January 2010 former director of our Ghanaian

subsidiary and company controlled by him com
menced an achon in Ghana against two of our sub

sidiaries for alleged wrongful termination of such

directors directorship and deprivation of an oppor

tunity to hold 70% shares in an oil trading company

and 3000 shares in shipping agency allegedly

agreed to be formed by the parties The plaintiffs

are seeking payment of approximately $7000

and damages for breach of trust extreme mental

anguish pain and suffering and loss of earnings

The Company believes that the plaintiffss claims

are unwarranted and that the outcome of this litiga

tion will have no material effect on the Company

Various claims suits and complains including

those involving government regulations and prod

uct liability arise in the ordinary course of business

In addition losses may arise from disputes with

charterers and agents and insurance and other

claims with suppliers relating to the operations of

the Companys vessels Currently management is

not aware of any such claims or contingent lia

bilities or for which provision should be estab

lished in the accompanying consolidated financial

statements
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16 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The amounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of income are analyzed as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 20102008

Bunkering tanker voyage expenses 020 2541 4152

Bunkering tanker insurance 1920 2415 3286

Bunkering tanker repairs and maintenance 4417 3275 3281

Bunkering tanker spares and consumable stores 2747 446B 5560

Bunkering tanker consumption of marine petroleum products 17796 13673 25125

Bunkering tanker hire charges 8430

Bunkering tanker other operating expenses 3097 20646 13242

Cargo transportation 12661 5987 12343

Provision for doubtful accounts f27 437 447
Stnrag cnst 4044 2971 4803

Port and related expenses 4403 4713 6719

General and administrative 10723 14703 15864

Broker commissions 2396 2489 3524

Cther 6960 1174 3388

Total 73157 79492 109270

17 INTEREST AND FINANCE COSTS

The amounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of income are analyzed as follows

Year Ended December 31

nnn nnn 2010

Interest on long-term debt Note 14 5384 8366 9011

Interest on short term borrowings Note 13 7495 930 3639

Amortization of financing fees Note 11 830 676 861

Bank commissions commitment fees and other charges 1536 1826 4416

Interest on lease payments 231 325

Capitalized interest Note 2868 1774 901

Total 12377 10255 17351

18 CAPITAL LEASES

The Company leases Barge PT 22 under capital

lease he annual future minimum lease payments

under the capital lease of Barge PT 22 together with

the present value of the net minimum lease payments

required to be made after December 31 2010 are

as follows

Amount

2011

2012

2013

2014

1262

1262

1262

421

Total minimum lease payments

Less imputed interest

4207

525

Present value of minimum lease payments

Current portion ot capitalized lease obligations

3682

1004

Long-term capitalized lease obligations $2678

19 EOUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
The Company measures stock-based compensation

cost at grant date based on the estimated fair value of

the award which is determined by the closing price of

the Companys common stock traded on the NYSE on

the grant date and recognizes the cost as expense on

straight line basis net of estimated forfeitures over

the vesting period The expense is recorded in sala

ries wages and related costs in the accompanying

consolidated statements of income Aegean is incor

porated in non taxable jurisdiction and accordingly

no deferred tax assets are recognized for these stock-

based incentive awards

On November 2006 the Companys Board of

Directors adopted the 20D6 Equity Incentive Plan

2DD6 Plan under which the Companys officers

key employees and directors are eligible to receive

stuLk-bd5td inLntivw dwardb inuluding rastricted

stock restricted stock units with or without dividend

equivalents unrestricted stock at-the-money non

qualified stock options and stock appreciation rights

The 2006 Plan is administered by the Compensation

Committee of the Company board of directors and

the aggregate number of shares common stock

reserved under this plan is 4053500 The Companys

board of directors may terminate the 2006 Plan at any

time The 2006 Plan expires ten years from the date

of adoption
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All grants of restricted stock issued under the 2006

Plan are subject to accelerated vesting upon certain

circumstances set fnrth in the 20fl6 Plan

The following table summarizes the status of the

Companys non vested shares outstanding for the

years ended December 31 2009 and 2010

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Market Price

At December 31 2008 297695 27 12

Granted 564109 1797

ye td 465695 02 33

Forte ted 10500 21 54

At December 31 2009 385609 2403

Granted 211250 2561

Vested 127116 2116

Forteited 3033 25 14

At December 31 2010 466710 25.52

Total compensation cost of $3459 and $4084 was

recognized and included under salaries wages and

related costs in the accompanying consolidated state

ments of income tor the years ended December 31

2009 and 2010 respectively

As of December 31 2010 there was $6528 of total

unrecognized compensation cost related to non

vested share-based compensation awards This unrec

ognized compensation cost at December 31 2010 is

expected to be recognized as compensation expense

over weighted average period of 2.7 years as follows

Amount

2011

2012

2013

2014

2938

2064

999

527

6528

20 COMMON STOCK TREASURY STOCK AND

ADDITIONAL PAID IN CAPITAL

Authorized Capital

Aegean was formed on June 2005 under the laws

of the Marshall Islands Aegeans authorized common

and preferred stock since inception consisted of

100000000 common shares all in registered form

par value $0 01 per share and 25000000 preferred

shares all in registered form par value $0 Dl per

share The holders of the common shares are entitled

to one vote on all matters submitted to vote of stock

holders and to receive all dividends it any The

Companys board of directors shall have the authority

to establish such series of preferred stock and with

such designations preferences and relative partici

pating optional or special rights and qualifications

limitations or restrictions as shall he stated in the reso

lutions providing tor the issue of such preferred stock

Share Issuance and Repurchase

On June 2005 Aegean issued 30472827 common

shares as restated for the split ups of common stock

described below with $0.01 par value per share to

Leveret and Leveret contemporaneously contributed

its direct and indirect ownership in the companies

described in Note to Aegean

On October 2005 Aegean acquired from Leveret

8o ot the total then issued and outstanding common

stock of Aegean representing the entire interests in

Leveret of members of Mr Dimitris Melisanidis family

other than Mr Melisanidis himself for price ot

$35000 Those shares were cancelled upon repur

chase in accordance with resolution of the board

of directors of Aegean The repurchased shares repre

sented the entire beneficial ownership of those mem
bers of Mr Melisanidis family The excess of the

purchase price over the par value of the acquired

shares is reflected first as deduction from additional

paid in capital and upon exhaustion of the balance of

additional paid in capital as deduction trom retained

earnings

Initial Public Offering

In December 2006 the Company completed its initial

public offering in the United States under the United

States Securities Act of 1933 as amended In this

respect 14375000 shares of common stock at par

value $0.01 were issued for $14.00 per share The pro

ceeds of the initial public otfering net of underwriting

commissions of $14088 and net of otfering expenses

of $1953 amounted to $185209

Public Offering

On January 27 2010 the Company completed

public oftering in the United States under the United

States Securities Act In this respect 4491900 shares

ot common stock at par value $0.01 were issued for

$32.75 per share The proceeds of the public oftering

net of underwriting commissions of $7355 and net of

issuance cost of $707 amounted to $139047

Treasury Stock

On May 17 2010 the Companys Board of Directors

approved plan to purchase 1000000 shares from

Mc Dimitris Melisanidis These shares were purchased

on May 21 2010 for an aggregate purchase price ot

$24680 which has been recorded as Treasury Stock

in the consolidated balance sheet as of December

31 2010

Us vested

Restricted

Stock
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Preferred Share Purchase Rights

In August 2009 the Company authorized and declared

dividend distrihiitinn nf nne preferred share piir

chase right Right on each outstanding share ot

its common stock The dividend distribution was made

to shareholders of record as of August 14 2009 The

rights will become exercisable and trade separately

from the common stock upon the earlier of ten days

following the public announcement or disclosure

that person or group an Acquiring Person has

acquired beneficial ownership or obtained the right

to acquire 15 percent or more of the outstanding

common stock or ii ten business days following the

voniniunvcniunt of ui thu unnuunvuniunt uf dn siten

tion to make tender offer or exchange offer the con

summation of which would result in such group or

person becoming an Acquiring Person In such cir

cumstances each right entitles shareholders to buy

one one-thousandth of share of new series of

junior participating preferred stock at purchase price

of $100.00 per share In the event that the rights are

triggered shareholders of record will be able to exer

cisc each right to receive upon payment of the exer

cisc price shares of common stock having market

value equal to twice the exercise price An Acquiring

Person will not be entitled to exercise any rights As of

December 31 2010 no such events had occurred

and no rights have been exercised

Dividends

The Company declared and paid dividends of $1711

$1719 and $1878 during the years ended December

31 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively

Capital Contributions

The amounts presented in the accompanying consoli

dated balance sheets as additinnal paid in capital

comprise payments made by the stockholders at

various dates to finance vessel acquisitions in excess

of the amounts of bank loans obtained and advances

for working capital ii the estimated value of certain

incidental employee services provided to the Company

by certain related companies for no consideration

Ui an allocation of costs for office services historically

shared with and the use of office equipment owned by

related companies and iv the difference between

the par value of the shares issued in the initial public

uffuiuig in Duruiiibui 2000 dud thu nut pruveuds

obtained for those shares

21 EARNINGS PER CDMMON SHARE
The computation of basic earnings per share is based

on the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding during the year The computation of diluted

earnings per share assumes the granting of non

vested share based compensation awards refer to

Note 19 for which the assumed proceeds upon grant

are deemed to be the amount of compensation cost

attributable to future services and not yet recognized

using the treasury stock method to the extent dilutive

Non vested share based payment awards that contain

rights to receive non forfeitable dividends or dividend

equivalents whether paid or unpaid and participate

equally in undistributed earnings are participating

securities and thus are included in the two class

method of computing earnings per share This method

was adopted on January 2009 and was applied ret

roactively to all periods presented

22 INCCME TAXES

The Company operates through its subsidiaries which

are subject to several tax jurisdictions as follows

Marshall Islands

The Company is incorporated in the Marshall Islands

Under current Marshall Islands law the Company is

not subject to tax on income or capital gains

The components of the calculation of basic earnings per common share and diluted earnings per common share

are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

Basic and diluted income $39915 $48525 $18733

Les Dividends declared and undistributed earnings allocated to unvested shares 386 171
Basic and diluted income available to common stockholders $39915 $48139 $18562

Basic weighted average number of common shares outstanding 42497450 42579187 46295973

Add lu ye eftect ot non vested shares 128351 65261 149526

Diluted weighted average numbcr ot common shares outstanding 42625801 42644448 46445499

Basic earnings per common share 94 13 0.40

Diluted earnings per common share 094 1.13 0.40
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Republic of Liberia

The principal operating entity of the Company AMP is

incorporated in the Republic of Liberia Under requla

tions promulgated by the Liberian Ministry of Finance

because AMP is considered non resident domestic

corporation it is not required to pay any tax or tile any

report or return with the Republic of Liberia in respect

of income derived from its operations outside of the

Republic of Liberia The Liberian Ministry of Justice

has issued an opinion that these regulations are valid

Greece

AMP has branch office established in Greece Under

the laws of Greece and in particular Greek Law 3427/

2005 which amended replaced and supplemented

provisions of Law 89/1967 as of January 2006

AMP is taxed on cost plus basis 5c on expenses

incurred by its branch office in Greece Furthermore

AMP is exempt from Greek income tax as well as any

other tax charge or contribution in favor of the Greek

State or any third party on income derived from all its

transactions worldwide in petroleum products lubri

cants and similar commodities the obtect of which lies

outside of Greece

United States

foreign corporation which is engaged in trade or

business in the United States will be subject to corpo

rate income tax and branch profits tax at combined

rate of up to 54.5c on its income which is effectively

connected with its United States trade or business or

Effectively Connected Income

Income from the sale of inventory property outside the

United States by foreign corporation will be treated

as Effectively Connected Income if the corporation

has fixed place of business in the United States to

which such income is attributable unless the prop

erty is sold for use consumption or disposition outside

the United States and the taxpayer has fixed

place of business in foreign country which materially

participates in the sale

While the Company has place of business in the

United States the Company believes that none of its

income would be treated as Effectively Connected

Income under the rules discussed above Specifically

the tompany anticipates that all of its sales ot

petroleum products will occur outside the United

States such products will be sold for use con

sumpfion or disposition outside the United States and

one of the Companys foreign offices will materially

participate in such sales Therefore the Company

anticipates that none of its income will be subject to

United States federal income tax on net basis

Belgium

The Company has trade activities in Belgium through

its subsidiary BAS and its new acquisition of the

Verbeke Business Note both incorporated in

Belgium and subiect to Belgian income taxes

The components of the BASs expense/benefit for

income taxes are as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2010

Current tax expense

Deterred tax benefit

30
768

90
1450

Income tax benefit 738 1.360

Effective tax rate 67.71 40.33%

The reconciliation between the statutory tax benefit in

Belgium on income of BAS from continuing operations

to the income tax benefit recorded in the finan

cial statements is as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2010

Income tax on loss before tax at

statutnry rate 0C2 1386

Effect of permenent differences 124 26
Total tax benefit 738 1360

Deferred income taxes are the result of provisions of

the tax laws that either require or permit certain items

of income or expense to be reported for tax purposes

in different periods than they are reported for financial

reporting The tax effects of temporary differences that

give rise to the deferred tax asset are as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2010

Deferred tex assets

Carryforward of notional

interest deduction 38 35

Tax carryforward lo ses 234 1725

Investment tax incentive 496 458

Total deterred taxes net 768 2218

The components of the Verbeke Business expense/

benefit for income taxes are as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2010

Current tax expense

Deterred tax expense

1805
85

Income tax expense 1890

Eftective tax rate 31.85%

Aegean Marine Petroleum Network 2010 Annual Report 67



The reconciliation between the statutory tax expense

in Belgium on income ot Verbeke trom continuing

operations to the income tax expense recorded in the

financial statements is as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2010

Income tax on proht before tax

at statutcry rate 1902
Etfect of permanent ditferences 12

Total tax expense 1890

Deferred income taxes are the result of provisions of

the ta laws that either require or permit certain items

ot income or expense to be reported for tax purposes

in different periods than they are reported for financial

reporting The tax effects of temporary difterences that

give rise to the deterred tax liability are as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2010

Deterred tax liabil ties

Revaluaticn of Verbeke fixed assets 2669

Total deferred tcAc5 nct 2669

In the accompanying balance sheets the deferred

income tax assets are included in the current assets

by the amount of $170 and $0 and in the non current

assets by the amount of $598 and $2218 for the years

ended December 31 2009 and 2010 respectively

Deferred fax liabilities are presented in the non current

liabilities by the amount of $0 and $2669 as at

December 31 2009 and 2010 respectively Of the

$2218 income tax benefit at December 31 2010 that

are carryforwards the $35 will expire in aDl7 if

unused The remaining balance does not expire As of

and for the year ended December 31 2010 the Com

pany has not recorded valuation allowance

Canada

In July 2008 the Company completed the acquisition

of ICS marine fuel logistics company incorporated

in Canada ICS is subject to Canadian income taxes

The components of ICSs expense/benefit for income

taxes are as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2010

Current tax expense

Deferrcd tax expense

991 1631

Income tax provision 891 1631

Effective fax rate 25 110 16.68%

The reconciliation the statutory tax expense in Canada

on income from continuing operations to the income

tax expense recorded in the financial statements is as

follows

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2010

Income tax on profit before fax

at statutory rafe 822 2631
Effect of permanenf differences 69 1000

Tofa ax expense 891 1631

Other

uenerally under the laws of the countries ot the vessel

owning companies and the Managers incorporation

and/or vessels registration the vessel-owning com

panies and the Manager were not subject to tax on

shipping income However the vessel owning compa
nies are subject to registration and tonnage taxes

which have been included in other operating expenses

in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income

The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 740 10

25 Accounting fr Uncertainty in lncm Taxes uO

January 2007 At December 31 2010 the Company
does not have any uncertain tax

filing positions As

result the Company has included all of its tax benefits

in its disclosure of future income tax assets and liabili

ties as discussed above There are no significant

changes to this assessment of uncertain tax
filing

positions anticipated within the next 12 months

The Company recognizes accrued interest and penal

ties related to unrecognized tax benefits as compo
nent of income fax expense During the

years ended

December 31 2009 and 2010 the Company did not

recognize any interest or penalties

The Company files income tax returns in the Canadian

federal jurisdiction and various provincial jurisdictions

as well as the Belgian federal jurisdiction In the nor

mal course of business the Company is subject to

examination by taxing authorities Open tax years in

Canada range from 2007 to 2010 while open tax

years in Belgium range from 2004 to 2010 However

upon examination in subsequent years if net

operating loss carryforwards and tax credit carryfor

wards are utilized the Canadian and Belgian lurisdic

tions can reduce net operating loss carryforwards and

tax credit carryforwards utilized in the year being

examined if they do not agree with the carryforward

amount As of December 31 2010 the Company was

not under audit in the Canadian Or Belgian taxing

furisdictions

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Expressed io thousaods of U.S dollars except share aod per share dafa uoless otherwise stated
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23 BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHICAL

IN FORMATION

The Company is primarily physical supplier in the

downstream marine pettoleum products industry

Marine petroleum products mainly consist of different

classifications of marine fuel oil marine gas oil and

lubricants

The Company cannot and does not identify expenses

profitability or other financial performance measures

by type of marine petroleum product supplied geo

graphical area served nature of services performed

or on anything other than on consolidated basis

although the Company is able to segregate revenues

on these various bases As result management

including the chief operating decision maker reviews

operating results on consolidated basis only There

fore the Company has determined that it has only one

operating segment

The Company is domiciled in the Marshall Islands but

provides no services in that location It is impractica

ble to disclose revenues from external customers

attributable to individual foreign countries because

where the customer is invoiced is not necessarily the

country of domicile In addition due to the nature of

the shipping industry where services are provided on

worldwide basis the country of domicile of the cus

tomer does not provide useful information regarding

the risk that this disclosure is intended to address

24 SUBSEOUENT EVENTS

Renewal of Loan Agreement On March 03 2011 the

Company renewed retroactively from February

2011 the senior secured syndicated revolving credit

and letter of credit facility that was signed on March

16 2009 as described in Note 13 Short-term borrow

ings The facility expires on January 30 2013 and has

credit limit of up to $210000 consisting of commit

ted amount of up to $125000 and an uncommitted

amount of up to $85000 The facility bears interest at

LIBOR plus 3.00% while documentary and standby

letters of credit are subject to commissions of 0.70%

and 1.60% respectively

Sale of VesseL On March 2011 the Company com

pleted the sale and delivered the Aegean VII 3728
dwt single hull bunkering tanker to third party pur

chaser The vessel was sold for $400 resulting in

loss of $20

New Market Operations On March 13 2011 the Com
pany commenced physical supply operations in Cape

Verde an archipelago of 10 islands located off the

coast of Western Africa upon entering into strategic

co-operation with Enacol an energy company based

in Cape Verde The Company currently operates our

double-hull bunkering tanker Dilos in the area

Renewal of Loan Agreement On February 25 2011

the Company renewed retroactively from February

2011 the senior secured syndicated revolving credit

and letter of credit facility that was signed on March

16 2009 as described in Note 13 Short-term borrow

ings The facility expires on January 30 2013 and has

credit limit of up to $210000 consisting of commit

ted amount of up to $125000 and an uncommitted

amount of up to $85000 The
facility

bears interest at

LIBOR plus 3.00% while documentary and standby

letters of credit are subject to commissions of 0.70%

and 1.60% respectively

OeliveryofNewbuilding On March 28 2011 the Com
pany took delivery of the Tilos 6263 dwt double hull

bunkering tanker newbuilding from the Oingdao

Hyundai Shipyard in China The cost of construction of

the vessel was $11823 The Tilos is deployed in the

Companys service center in Singapore

On March 30 2611 the Company renewed the revolv

ing overdraft credit facility as described in Note 13

Short term borrowings The facility expires on March

2012 and has credit limit of up to $10000 The

amended facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 5.50%
is secured by among other things first priority mort

gage over each of the vessels Aegean Ace Aegean

Champion and Aegean Sara

Oecline in Share Price Subsequent to the balance

sheet date but before issuance of the auditors

report the Companys share price declined such that

the market capitalization is now lower than the con

solidated net book value The Company considers this

to be possible indicator of impairment of goodwill

and will perform an interim test for impairment in the

near future

The Companys long-lived assets mainly consist of

bunkering tankers which are positioned across the

Companys existing territories and which manage
ment including the chief operating decision maker

reviews on periodic basis and reposition amonc the

Companys existing or new territories to optimize the

vessel per geographical territory ratio The Companys
vessels operate within or outside the territorial waters

of each geographical location and under international

law shipping vessels usually fall under the jurisdiction

of the country of the flag they sail The Companys
vessels are not permanently located within particular

territorial wafers and the Company is free to mobilize

all its vessels worldwide at its own discretion

Aegean Marine Petroieum Network 2010 Annuai Report 69



This page left intentionally blank






